
Lancashire County Council

Scrutiny Committee

Friday, 13th November, 2015 at 10.00 am in Cabinet Room 'B' - The Diamond 
Jubilee Room, County Hall, Preston 

Agenda

Part I (Open to Press and Public)

No. Item

1. Apologies  

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary 
Interests  
Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary and 
Non-Pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to 
the meeting in relation to matters under consideration 
on the Agenda.

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 October 2015  (Pages 1 - 6)

4. Report of the Fire Suppression Measures Task 
Group  

(Pages 7 - 20)

5. Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board Update  (Pages 21 - 66)

6. Transforming Care and Calderstones NHS 
Foundation Trust - Notice of Motion  

(Pages 67 - 72)

7. Workplan and Task Group Update  (Pages 73 - 80)

8. Urgent Business  
An item of urgent business may only be considered 
under this heading where, by reason of special 
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair 
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be 
given advance warning of any Member's intention to 
raise a matter under this heading.

9. Date of Next Meeting  



The next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee will be 
held on 11 December 2015 at 10:00am at the County 
Hall, Preston.

I Young
Director of Governance, 
Finance and Public Services 

County Hall
Preston



1

Lancashire County Council

Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday, 16th October, 2015 at 10.00 am in 
Cabinet Room 'B' - The Diamond Jubilee Room, County Hall, Preston

Present:
County Councillor Bill Winlow (Chair)

County Councillors

A Barnes
C Crompton
J Gibson
Mrs L Oades
D O'Toole
C Pritchard

A Schofield
J Shedwick
C Wakeford
D Watts
G Wilkins

County Councillor J Gibson replaced County Councillor M Parkinson at this 
meeting.

1.  Apologies

None received.

2.  Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

None disclosed.

3.  Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 September 2015

In relation to item 4, Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Update, County 
Councillor Oades pointed out that her request for further work to be carried out on 
the existing enterprise zone at Warton, as progress had been below the expected 
level, had not been recorded in the minutes.

Resolved: That, subject to the point above being noted, the minutes of the last 
meeting held on 18 September 2015 be confirmed and signed by the Chair.

4.  Road Safety Report

The Chair welcomed Clare Platt, Head of Service, Health, Equity, Welfare and 
Resources; Jackie Brindle, Safer Travel Manager; Chief Inspector Damien 
Kitchen, Lancashire Constabulary; Tony Crook, Lancashire Fire and Rescue 
Service; County Councillor John Fillis, Cabinet Member for Highways; and Daniel 
Herbert, Highways Manager to the meeting.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

Clare Platt and Jackie Brindle presented a report on the latest road safety 
statistics for Lancashire providing details of the number of people who had been 
killed or seriously injured on the roads in Lancashire set against the national 
picture.

The report provided details of the latest road safety statistics for Lancashire 
which focussed upon the identification of current issues and priorities, set out the 
action being taken and outlined plans to address the rising casualty levels. The 
context of the road safety budget was also delivered, along with an update on the 
20mph speed limit programme. 

The officers also presented a PowerPoint presentation to the Committee which 
illustrated road safety statistics for Lancashire and various initiatives that were 
designed to aid reduction in road casualties. 
  
Members were invited to ask questions and raise any comments in relation to the 
report, a summary of which is provided below:

The Committee raised concerns with regard to the issue of dangerous parking 
outside schools. Officers advised that interventions and resources developed in 
response to an upsurge in complaints had led to multi-agency interventions and a 
toolkit of resources in development which included the provision of A-boards to 
schools.

It was agreed that Officers would provide the Committee with the contact details 
of the Safer Travel Team and the 'six point methodology' used to identify road 
safety interventions.

Whilst the Committee welcomed the latest road safety statistics for Lancashire, it 
was suggested that it would be helpful to receive further context and details of the 
location and causes of road accidents.  In response, the officers referred to the 
District Action Plans available on the county council's website and included a spot 
map of the geographical location of road accidents in Lancashire. However, it 
was acknowledged that further analysis of the statistics was required and this 
would be addressed by the recruitment of a road safety analyst. It was explained 
that the road safety analyst was anticipated to be in post within the next few 
months.

The Committee welcomed the various initiatives underway to increase road 
safety including the 'Wasted Lives' young driver education programme and 
suggested that this and other initiatives should be publicised more widely.  

Members also requested analysis to take place around the potential for extending 
the Community Road Watch Scheme to allow for the monitoring and recording of 
vehicle speeds at times when there was a high number of speeding vehicles. 

In response to concerns raised in relation to slow moving vehicles, Chief 
Inspector Kitchen advised that drivers of slow moving vehicles would be expected 

Page 2



3

to adhere to the Highway Code directive and show courtesy to other road users 
by pulling over when and where possible, to let other traffic pass.

The Committee was also informed that it was planned that police resources 
would be allocated to enforce the speed limit in 20mph zones, and there were 
various initiatives to encourage compliance. These included the use of SPIDs 
(Speed indicator devices) and the Community Road Watch Scheme. Councillor 
Oades questioned the success of the 20mph speed limit scheme and commented 
that it would have been more cost effective to limit the implementation of the 
scheme to those residential areas that would benefit from this approach.  

Discussion taken place around the Lancashire Partnership for Road Safety 
(LPfRS). County Councillor Fillis explained the aims and the role of the LPfRS 
and noted that they delivered a co-ordinated and cohesive approach to road 
safety pan-Lancashire. It was noted that the LPfRS planned to oversee the 
development of projects such as the digital speed camera upgrade and conveyed 
that consideration should be given to the introduction of average speed cameras 
at a number of locations across Lancashire. It was also noted that the new speed 
awareness cameras would have the capacity to identify whether a driver was 
using a mobile phone or wearing a seat belt. 

Councillor O'Toole commented that local knowledge was important and that the 
local community should be consulted prior to the implementation of fixed 
cameras, making particular reference to a camera in West Lancashire that was 
deemed to be in the wrong location. Officers advised that mobile cameras could 
be deployed in response to concerns raised by the local community. Councillor 
Fillis agreed to review the location of one fixed camera in West Lancashire.

The Committee queried whether there was any correlation between the high 
frequency of road accidents in Preston and Lancaster and the number of 
overseas students attending the city's universities, who may not necessarily be 
aware of the rules on Lancashire's public highways. The officers advised that the 
high numbers were not necessarily attributable to the student population. 
However, the county council and its partners would continue to work with both 
universities to encourage a collaborative approach to education and engagement 
in respect of road safety.  

In respect of cyclists, the Committee was informed that it was proposed to 
undertake further analysis to evaluate casualty data and the subsequent 
identification of specific behaviours that may be contributing factors. It was also 
noted that a social media campaign, specifically targeting cyclists and their risk 
taking behaviours, was proposed to be initiated.  

Officers advised members of the methodology behind the prioritisation process 
for highway engineering solutions, as reported in the PowerPoint presentation, 
and reiterated that they would circulate the information to members.  

Further concerns were raised with regard to traffic issues associated with parking 
outside schools. It was suggested that schools should make more provision in 

Page 3



4

terms of on-site parking, especially where there were plans to extend schools. 
There was a call for more collaborative thinking between planning, schools and 
the highways service to address the issues. Officers agreed to bring these views 
to the attention of the Council's Development Management Group. 

The Committee was advised that there were various initiatives available to 
address dangerous parking outside schools. These included the introduction of 
waiting restrictions, zig-zag lines and the opportunity for schools to develop a 
travel plan. The Committee was advised to contact the Safer Travel Team for 
advice if they had any concerns regarding this.

The Committee expressed the view that more needed to be done to encourage 
children to walk to school. The Safer Travel Manager advised that her team 
worked with schools to encourage more active travel to school by raising 
awareness of obesity and other health issues associated with a lack of exercise.

In response to concerns raised with regard to the restructure of the county 
council's services, County Councillor Fillis invited Members to contact him if they 
encountered any difficulties with highways or highways related issues and he 
would subsequently consult the relevant Director and Head of Service.

Councillor Schofield suggested that it would be helpful if members were 
consulted on any highway and road safety decisions affecting their electoral 
division.   

The committee raised various questions with regard to the statistics for road 
accidents and were advised that;

Whilst there was some variation, most accidents occurred during the morning and 
evening commute; 

There were more incidents involving cyclists and motorbikes at the weekend; 

Casual data showed that mobile phone usage was not to a contributory factor in 
road accidents. However, it was acknowledged that it was a road safety issue. 

The KSI (Killed or Seriously Injured) statistics were available on the Councillors 
C-First website.  

It was noted that a further report on road safety would be presented to a future 
meeting of the Committee.      

Resolved: That the Committee note the approach to road safety in Lancashire 
and the progress made in reducing road accident casualties.

5.  Work Plan and Task Group Update

Resolved; That the work plan and task group update be noted.

Page 4



5

6.  Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

7.  Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee would be held on 
Friday, 13 November, 2015, at 10:00am at the County Hall, Preston in Cabinet 
Room 'B'. 

I Young
Director of Governance, Finance 
and Public Services

County Hall
Preston

Page 5



Page 6



Scrutiny Committee

Meeting to be held on 13 November 2015

Electoral Divisions affected:
All

Report of the Fire Suppression Measures Task Group
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Habib Patel, (01772) 536099, Democratic Services 
Habib.patel@lancashire.gov.uk 

Executive Summary

Attached at Appendix 'A' is the report of the Fire Suppression Measures Task Group 
which outlines the discussion and recommendations as a result of the Task Group's 
analysis.

Attached at Appendix 'B' is the report presented to the 'All Party Fire Safety and 
Rescue Group' parliamentary seminar by Jason Homan entitled, 'The Financial 
Constraints of Implementing Fire Safety Requirements into New Build Schools', 
which was utilised by the Task Group towards formulating recommendations. 

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to:

Support the recommendations of the Task Group as set out in the report at 
Appendix 'A', and comment as appropriate. 

Background and Advice 

This task group was formed at the request of the Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People to consider the potential for installing a fire suppression system 
(sprinklers) into all Lancashire schools. As a result the group has met a number of 
times to discuss this matter, basing the discussions around the report presented to 
the 'All Party Fire Safety and Rescue Group' parliamentary seminar by Jason Homan 
in April 2013 entitled 'The Financial Constraints of Implementing Fire Safety 
Requirements into New Build Schools' (see Appendix 'B').

Membership of the task group

The Task group was made up of the following County Councillors:-
 CC Jackie Oakes (Chair) 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Habib.patel@lancashire.gov.uk


 CC Carl Crompton 
 CC Susie Charles 
 CC Cynthia Dereli
 CC Michael Green 
 CC Sandra Perkins 
 CC Jeff Sumner 

Scope of the Scrutiny exercise

The key objectives were to:

 Assess the financial aspects
 Assess the community impacts
 Assess the cost for fitting sprinklers into new schools and the retrofitting of 

sprinklers 
 Understand the technical aspects 
 Understand the role and thoughts of the Fire & Rescue Service
 To consider all of the above and formulate recommendations 

The report of the task group's investigation together with their conclusions and 
recommendations is attached as Appendix A.

Consultations

N/A.

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel

N/A.

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A.

 

Page 8



November 2015

Fire Suppression Measures
Overview & Scrutiny Review

For further information about this report please contact
Habib Patel
Scrutiny Officer
01772 536099
habib.patel@lancashire.gov.uk 

Page 9

mailto:habib.patel@lancashire.gov.uk


Contents

Background to the review 3
Membership of the task group 3
Methodology 3
Findings 3
Recommendations 5

Page 10



Background to the review 

This task group was formed at the request of the Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People to consider the potential for installing a fire suppression system 
(sprinklers) into all Lancashire schools. As a result the group has met a number of 
times to discuss this matter, basing the discussions around the report presented to the 
'All Party Fire Safety and Rescue Group' parliamentary seminar by Jason Homan in 
April 2013 entitled 'The Financial Constraints of Implementing Fire Safety 
Requirements into New Build Schools' (see Appendix 'B').

Membership of the task group

The following County Councillors were appointed to the Task Group:-

 CC Jackie Oakes (Chair) 
 CC Carl Crompton 
 CC Susie Charles 
 CC Cynthia Dereli
 CC Michael Green 
 CC Sandra Perkins 
 CC Jeff Sumner 

Methodology
The review sought to: 

 Assess the financial aspects
 Assess the community impacts
 Assess the cost for fitting sprinklers into new schools and the retrofitting of 

sprinklers 
 Understand the technical aspects 
 Understand the role and thoughts of the Fire & Rescue Service
 To consider all of the above and formulate recommendations 

Findings 

Regarding suggestions by members that all new schools be fitted with sprinkler 
systems, and that all other schools would be subject to a feasibility test to investigate 
if they could be installed, the following issues were discussed. 

 Currently when designing a new build school a risk assessment tool developed 
by government is used to consider whether the installation of a sprinkler system 
is appropriate. LCC also add in additional site specific information into this 
assessment and based on the outcome make a decision about the overall fire 
safety measures that will be designed in to that particular school, which may 
include a sprinkler system.

Page 11



 The provision of a sprinkler system is not about saving lives it is about saving 
the building itself and of equal importance the contents inside. New build 
schools are designed to ensure adequate evacuation in an emergency 
situation, however it is the loss of the contents, including school work, that may 
not ordinarily be protected against.

 If sprinkler systems were to be installed into new build schools what 
consideration would be given to the existing portfolio of schools, and indeed 
those schools that may be extended given that in the foreseeable future the 
majority of additional school places will be provided by the extension of existing 
premises as opposed to the construction of brand new school.

 If the group were to recommend the installation of sprinklers in new build 
schools it was felt important to develop criteria under which major school 
extensions would also trigger the requirement.

 There are a considerable number of schools within Lancashire that are not 
under the control of LCC, however it would be important to try and establish a 
common approach to all school provision within the county.

 The potential cost of sprinkler installations was discussed along with the 
potential cost for carrying out feasibility studies on all existing schools to assess 
their suitability for such an installation. Whilst it was felt important that the cost 
for a new build installation should be included with their capital budgets, it was 
acknowledged that the costs to assess the whole schools estate would be 
significant, as would the cost of then actually installing systems into existing 
schools were it was felt to be achievable.

 The alternative use of a misting system in lieu of a sprinkler system was 
discussed although the use of these was not as extensive and therefore the 
reliability of these systems has not been demonstrated to match that of a 
sprinkler system.

 The psychological impact on a school was discussed in terms of the disruption 
that can be caused to the pupils, their families and the staff in the event of a fire 
causing significant damage to a school, or indeed leading to a total loss of a 
school.

Regarding suggestions that schools should have assessments to check their existing 
sprinkler systems, as it had come to light that sprinkler systems had been painted over, 
the following issues were discussed; 

 It was noted that all such systems should currently be inspected as part of a 
school's annual 'premise management' procedure. However it was accepted 
that it would be difficult for the authority to ensure that this was the case and 
hence the possibility of the authority itself carrying out such an inspection was 
discussed.

 It was confirmed that in the event of a sprinkler system discharging it was only 
the sprinkler head within the vicinity of the source of the fire that would be 
triggered which meant that if an individual head had been painted over that 
wouldn’t necessarily mean the entire system would not function. It also means 
that if a system does discharge, the resultant water damage is confined to the 
area of the source of the fire.

Page 12



Regarding suggestions that in the event that systems were fitted, they would become 
the responsibility of the school and that this was to be clearly stated, the following 
issues were discussed:

 The group felt strongly that this should be the case as it currently is with regard 
to any other system within a school premise. It would form part of a school's 
annual statement of compliance in respect of their premise.

Regarding suggestions that secure fire retardant storage be created to avoid the loss 
of work in the event of a fire, as a cheaper alternative to a sprinkler system, the 
following issues were discussed: 

 In the event of a fire, although they present significant disruption to a school 
family, the buildings themselves can eventually be replaced, however what 
cannot be replaced is the school work whether that be staff curriculum 
information or the pupil's work. Therefore if it is not possible to have sprinklers 
installed in all schools and consideration should be given to the provision of 
such storage.

Recommendations
Having considered all of these issues over a number of meetings the task group 
would like to make the following recommendations to the county council in respect 
of fire suppression in schools;

1. All brand new schools developed by LCC shall have a sprinkler system installed 
as part of their fire safety strategy. With regard to the extension of an existing 
school, where the capacity of a school is to increase by 50% or more, based on 
pupil numbers, then a sprinkler system shall be installed into the resultant new 
facility (both the new and existing elements). 

Once installed the responsibility to correctly inspect, service and maintain the 
sprinkler system shall rest with the governing body of that school.

2. All schools that currently have a fire suppression system installed shall have an 
initial assessment carried out by LCC to establish the condition of the system. 
Any remedial work required to ensure the correct operation of the system shall 
be carried out by the individual school within 6 months of them being notified of 
these requirements.

3. Upon completion of the initial assessments and resultant remedial works where 
necessary the responsibility for the future inspection, servicing and 
maintenance of the system shall rest with the governing body of that school.

4. All schools under the control of LCC and which do not have a fire suppression 
system installed shall seek to provide a fire retardant storage facility suitable for 
their needs as assessed by themselves

Page 13



All other organisations that are responsible for the provision of school premises 
within Lancashire shall be encouraged to adopt the same recommendations as 
will apply to those schools under the direct control of LCC

5. In order to ensure this policy remains consistent with future changes in building 
legislation it is to be reviewed every 5 years.

Page 14



Appendix 'B'

1

All Party Fire Safety and Rescue Group
A Parliamentary Seminar
22nd April 2013.

The Financial Constraints of Implementing Fire Safety Requirements 
into New Build Schools

The debate around the provision of fire suppression into the new build schools 
portfolio has been a lively one for some time now having gathered momentum 
in early 2000 with a number of reports being considered both by central 
government but also across local education authorities nationwide. These 
reports culminated in central government introducing a new policy in March 
2007 when Jim Knight MP, the then School’s minister, made it clear to 
Parliament that it was the government expectation that all but very few new 
schools would be fitted with sprinklers as standard under the new policy. In 
November of 2007 the then DfES published Building Bulleting 100 which 
Approved Document B of the Building Regulations, revised in 2006 largely to 
take account of the Regulatory Reform Order 2005, refers to by stating that 
BB100 should be followed for the design of schools.

Since the introduction of BB100 there is an expectation that all new schools will 
have sprinklers fitted. Any exceptions to this will have to be justified by 
demonstrating that a school is low risk and that the use of sprinklers would not 
be good value for money. A risk assessment tool was therefore developed to 
help designers make the right decision.

School sprinkler design is about property, and not life protection. In the UK, life 
protection systems are more complex and hence more expensive.  In almost 
every case the BB100 risk assessment tool is used the resulting indication is a 
medium to high risk outcome and thus a sprinkler system is required. It should 
be pointed out that the building bulletin is guidance only - not mandatory - and 
nor are sprinklers in schools a building regulation requirement. However, there 
is a feeling that whilst the risk assessment tool is the right approach in helping 
set a fire strategy, it should be reviewed, as it does not sufficiently reflect all 
local circumstances, history and knowledge.  Whilst there are clearly parts of 
the country where arson and fire risk are very high and sprinklers are an 
effective solution, likewise there areas of low risk and the tool weighting is not 
appropriate to reflect that. For example, we do not install sophisticated intruder 
alarms, CCTV systems and high perimeter fencing in a very low crime area just 
in case of a burglary.  Yes it could happen, but local knowledge and experience 
makes it a very small risk.  

Furthermore, what has also caused concern is the way in which many local 
authorities over the years have started to implement school sprinkler policies 
without full and proper consultation, especially given the impact on both capital 
and revenue budgets for such developments. All of the potential benefits were 
there for all to see, however, in reality, they were not all necessarily applicable 
in all circumstances. Moreover, much like booking through a low budget airline, 
the final actual cost of sprinklers was not matching many of the costs quoted at 
early stages by various bodies. As a consequence, construction professionals 

Page 15



Appendix 'B'

2

were left either having to explain to their sponsors why projects were overspent, 
or that they would require further funding. As every QS will tell you, the first cost 
is the one that everyone remembers.
.  

What cannot be ignored is that sprinklers, along with other fire management 
solutions, should be considered when developing an appropriate fire strategy 
and solution. School sprinklers are an emotive subject and it can be difficult to 
have a professional and rational debate without the accusation being made that 
construction design teams have no concern for either children’s safety or that 
of fire officers who risk their lives tackling school fires. Naturally health and 
safety is the number one concern and always will be. But design teams on 
behalf of their Education Authority clients have to make difficult decisions, 
balancing all the competing demands on an ever decreasing budget. Whether 
it is sustainability, BREAM, gas or electrical regulation changes, energy 
conservation, or new building regulations, they all have to be funded out of that 
diminishing pot! In an ideal world every new initiative or requirement would be 
fully funded but the DCSF whilst developing sprinkler guidance and a risk 
assessment tool had no funding to offset this extra cost. This meant that 
Education Authorities had to find between 2.5 to 5% of the capital construction 
costs, often from within their existing budgets, to fund sprinklers in a typical 
primary school.  Furthermore, schools would have to pick up the increased 
revenue costs. So was this providing value for money in safeguarding our 
children in schools or could/should the money be spent more effectively 
elsewhere was the question that was and continues to be asked.

The Department for Transport published statistics on road casualties in 
accidents reported to the police in Great Britain in 2008, and according to the 
arrangements approved by the UK Statistics Authority the number of children 
killed or seriously injured in 2008 was 2,807 (down 9 per cent on 2007). Of 
those, 1,784 were pedestrians, 6 per cent down on 2007. 124 children died on 
the roads. Contrast this to schools where it is rumored that two children have 
died in school fires since the Second World War (which apparently occurred in 
a playing fields shed).  Of course that doesn’t mean we should be complacent 
as a school fire could occur tomorrow with horrific consequences but 
statistically our schools have been very safe places compared to other 
environments that our children encounter daily.  They are at far greater risk as 
a pedestrian and, therefore, it could be suggested that we should be directing 
further funding into road safety than school sprinkler systems in the interest of 
safeguarding their well being?  Therefore for a school, perhaps sprinkler 
benefits are more about more about mitigating the psychological impact of a 
major fire. The need to relocate into temporary accommodation, and the effect 
on the children of being taught in these inadequate environments, the additional 
stress on the staff who then have to occupy these facilities, the loss of pupils 
work, (my dad still has the first model house I ever made in university some 27 
years ago), the loss to the community of a central asset for adult education, pre 
and post school clubs, social gatherings and recreational amenities. Equally 
our Education Authorities have expressed a view that perhaps more attention 
should be focused not on our new build schools, which are built to far more 
stringent regulations, but on the fire risk of our existing building school stock. 

Page 16



Appendix 'B'

3

Would the money being spent on sprinkler installations for new build be best 
spent on surveying existing schools and identifying potential risks and raising 
fire safety awareness across a portfolio, rather than the selective few?  We 
need to be very clear in each case what the purpose of installing sprinkler 
systems is.  Are they about safeguarding, reducing disruption to children’s 
education and the wider community or for insurance reasons? 

There is a lot of confusing and conflicting cost information published that, if 
taken at face value, could easily lead to an embarrassing financial shortfall if 
simply incorporated into a budget.  There are many factors, not always 
immediately obvious to check:

 The sources of the costs published and ask could the author have a 
vested interest or perhaps have limited knowledge of the construction 
process?

 are the school figures quoted referring to a secondary school rather than 
a primary school? A secondary school has an economy of scale so 
perhaps 1.8% of construction costs for a secondary school is expected  
compared to 2.5% to 5% (or more) for a primary school.

 are the school figures quoted referring to a mains fed system or fully 
pumped system requiring a large housing for the considerable plant and 
tank? 

It can be difficult to obtaining accurate historical cost information as many local 
authorities have out sourced their design teams and PFI providers are often 
reluctant – due to commercial confidentiality - to provide any meaningful cost 
data. 

When looking at the developed cost plan it is worth checking that:
 all associated builders work associated with an installation is included. 

For example, holes for sprinkler pipe work, trenching, making good, 
valve chamber, full housing for a tank, painting pipes, etc. Remember if 
your tank will be incorporated within the school to include the cost of that 
dedicated space including the structural implications of storing the many 
tonnes of water.

 controls, electrical supplies, generator (if required), panel interface and 
other associated equipment are all priced.

 for the utilities cost, especially mains water connections are included
 the cost for designing and constructing a suitable housing has not been 

overlooked.
 the extra design costs for the design team associated with a sprinkler 

installation are identified.

Remember purpose built housings will need planning permission so make sure 
they are included in your planning submission.

It does well to remember that, when fitting sprinklers into an existing building, 
the location of the heads takes priority over all other services. This requirement 

Page 17



Appendix 'B'

4

can result in considerable extra cost as a consequence of having to relocate 
light fittings, ventilation ducts, grilles etc.

Whole life costs are increased due to the added maintenance and servicing 
costs of plant associated with the sprinkler installation. This can create difficulty 
when attempting to prove VFM.  

On a mains fed system what would be the implications and costs if the local 
water pressure fall and pumps and storage become required? Who would pay 
the school or LA? Could the design be easily adapted to include a tank and 
housing and would there be planning complications? This became a real issue 
for us in Lancashire some years ago when whilst we might have been in the 
comfort zone of knowing that as long as the Fire Brigade were able to attend 
within a given timeframe then surely all will be fine, not the case, although when 
one of our primary schools was the subject of arson, the fire brigade responded 
within a very tight timescale, when they arrived and connected up their hoses 
the water pressure was so poor that they were still not able to prevent the total 
loss of the facility.

What are the full ongoing maintenance costs? This ranges from the weekly 
testing to the full professional servicing.  And remember if you are not able to 
demonstrate that you have maintained your sprinkler system in accordance 
with your insurers requirements, your insurer may legitimately reject any future 
claim.  

Have you included for a “Red Care” or similar monitoring service? Again there 
is often assumption that all schools have intruder alarm systems connected to 
a monitoring service. This is a revenue cost for schools.

What are the insurance premium benefits that you will obtain? experience has 
been that Local Authorities that have block insurance are unlikely to realise 
premium reductions for the occasional school fitted with sprinklers (when the 
overwhelming majority of their stock are not fitted with sprinklers) other than on 
the individual schools that have had sprinklers fitted.  Whilst there are often 
“deductable” or “excess” benefits to be had, premium reductions are not 
available unless schools are individually valued. Perhaps this is an important 
area for the insurance industry to consider.

It has to be acknowledged that a sprinkler system will allow savings to be made 
in other areas less fire walls due to larger compartments, a reduction in the 
number of expensive fire doors, more flexibility in design layout, a relaxation on 
the standard of surface finishes, a reduction the need for emergency lighting, a 
reduction the requirement in respect of stair widths, and a general increase in 
flexibility when considering access for the fire services during an emergency.     

However, there are also issues and costs related to ongoing maintenance of 
sprinkler systems for example, 

 voids above suspended ceilings may need to be fitted with sprinklers 
and need to be accessible. Sprinklered roof spaces will need safe 
access and lighting. 

Page 18



Appendix 'B'

5

 some school clients prefer sprinkler heads to be concealed above the 
suspended ceiling, with just a small flush circular plate on show in the 
ceiling tile to minimise vandalism risk. It’s essential that if these plates 
are damaged (which are designed to drop off above a set temperature) 
are not stuck back on with glue. Yes, it’s happened or they have been 
painted by an over keen school premises manager.  

 sprinklers are not a replacement for good housekeeping and only 
operate when everything else has failed. They do not prevent fires, they 
only respond to them and if there are no fires, they add no value to a 
child’s education.  

So what are we doing in Lancashire? In the last 7 years we have had 53 
insurance claims as a result of school fires, with the total cost of those claims 
being some £800k giving an annual cost around £112k, around about the cost 
of a sprinkler installation in a new build 2 form entry primary school, we 
therefore give due consideration to all of our new developments, not just relying 
on the BB100 risk assessment but also considering other issues perhaps not 
considered by BB100. We are about to start construction on 3 new primary 
schools with costs expected to be £80k for a 1 form entry school in Weeton, 
and around £120k for our new 2 form entry primary school in Barnoldswick. 
Both of these school designs are our first to follow the principles of our new 
standard models to ensure we are developing in line with government wishes, 
and as a result of our standard models we have had the opportunity to liaise 
closely with Lancashire Fire and Rescue service allowing us also to consider 
the use of misting systems, however we are finding that the cost of misting 
systems is making full sprinkler systems more appealing. But by looking to 
include sprinkler systems we are increasing the budget pressure on our 
Education Authority who are already dealing a shortfall in funding just to meet 
the basic need requirements with the increasing birth rates which mean we 
have to find an additional 13 forms of entry across Lancashire by September 
15’. Our current new build costs per pupil place are around the £10k mark with 
the DfE new build allowance being around £6.5k per pupil place. This leaves 
around £3,5k per place for the authority to find, a total of some £1.3 million to 
meet its basic need requirements. But even with this shortfall in funding should 
we be prepared to play the lottery when it comes to our children’s education, 
when assessing the threat to life you may well think it is a price to high to pay, 
however when you consider the cost of the other issues mentioned earlier, that 
cannot always be measured in pound notes, the answer may be different and 
the default position must be to ensure a thorough project by project assessment 
is made as to whether sprinklers should or should not be included.

Jason Homan

Page 19



Page 20



Scrutiny Committee

Meeting to be held on 13 November 2015

Electoral Division affected:
All

Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board   

Update regarding LSCB key activity 

 (Appendix 'A' and 'B' refer) 

Contact for further information:

Jane Booth, Tel:  07795061538, Independent Chair, Lancashire Safeguarding 
Children Board      Jane.Booth@lancashire.gov.uk  

Paul Hegarty, Tel: 01772 538352, Business Manager, Lancashire Safeguarding
Children Board     Paul.hegarty@lancashire.gov.uk 

Executive Summary

Lancashire County Council is a key member agency of Lancashire Safeguarding 
Children Board (LSCB).  This report presents the Annual Report of the Lancashire 
Safeguarding Children Board for 2014-5. The production of this report fulfils a 
statutory requirement and its contents are, to a large extent, determined by the legal 
framework and this results in a document of some size.  A group of young people 
are currently working on an alternative version with a target audience of children 
and young people themselves. 

The report records a number of positive indications that some areas of risk have 
reduced and identifies a number of strengths in respect of the Board itself.  There 
remain, however, a number of key areas for further consideration.  The above are 
summarised on page 4 of the report. 

The report makes no reference to the recent Ofsted inspection as this did not take 
place within 2015/16 financial year. The 2015/16 business plan will be revised once 
the inspection report has been published to include relevant activities and priorities 
in response to the inspection. Progress with these be reflected extensively in next 
year's annual report.  

The LSCB also has a statutory requirement to commission and publish Serious 
Case Reviews (SCRs) when a child has died in abusive or neglectful circumstances. 
Appended to the report is a summary of the key learning points from 2 recent SCRs, 
one of which is awaiting publication upon conclusion of legal matters. 

Recommendation

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Jane.Booth@lancashire.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.hegarty@lancashire.gov.uk


Committee members are asked to consider each of the reports provided. 

Committee members may wish to assure themselves that services provided by 
Lancashire County Council and its partners are effective and sufficient in light of the 
specific reports about those issues. 

Background and Advice 

The LSCB has a statutory responsibility to ensure the effectiveness of work 
undertaken by agencies to safeguard children in Lancashire. This Annual Report 
reflects on the work undertaken in this regard in Lancashire for the 2014-15 financial 
year. The report is attached at Appendix 1 for information.  The Board is required to 
have an Independent Chair and has the responsibility to promote and protect the 
welfare and interest of children, young people and their families.  The Chair of the 
Board is accountable to the Council's Chief executive who is, in turn, responsible for 
ensuring its effectiveness. 

Protocols are in place which establish the relationship between the LSCB, the 
Children and Young People's Trust Board and the Health and Well-being Board and 
to strengthen this link the Independent Chair of the LSCB has recently joined the 
Health and Well-being Board.  

The Director of Children's Services is a statutory member of the LSCB along with the 
Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools who is a 'participating 
observer' on the Board Cabinet will see that a great deal of effective work to 
safeguard children has taken place during the last twelve months. However, there 
are several areas that the LSCB remains concerned about:

  Ensuring equality of services given the complexity and diversity of the 
administrative area especially in relation to deprivation rates

 Poor health outcomes, especially child obesity, tooth decay and hospital 
attendance

 Increasing self-harm in young people
 Increasing numbers of CLA from other local authorities (approaching 1000)
 Significant reduction in CPP to below the national average
 Number of CLA above national average
 Increasing number of CSE referrals but no increase in recorded crime
 Continuing development of effective early intervention and preventative 
 Disproportionate levels of child deaths from Asian Pakistani heritage
 Achieving successful engagement by the LSCB with schools and early years 

settings.

The level of concern regarding services for children experiencing emotional and 
mental health issues resulted in the LSCB reporting its concerns to the Health and 

Page 22



Well Being Board who responded by requiring a comprehensive review with the 
intention re-commissioning services from April 2016.. 

The LSCB will continue to work with partner agencies to address all areas for 
development identified in the Annual Report and Lancashire County Council is a key 
organisation in all this work. 

Priorities identified in the current Business Plan are:

Priority Area 1: Improve the effectiveness of agencies and the community in 
preventing child sexual exploitation

Priority Area 2: Improve the effectiveness of agencies in meeting the needs of 
Children Missing for Home, Care and Education

Priority Area 3: Improve the effectiveness of safeguarding activity for children in 
specific circumstances:

 Children placed in Lancashire from other areas, and in other 
areas from Lancashire

 Children whose parents are in prison
 Children in need of support for emotional and mental health 

issues
 Children who are Privately Fostered

Cabinet will also note that it proposed to align the business functions of both the 
adult and children safeguarding boards to achieve greater efficiency and improved 
synergy with shared functions and responsibility. 

Consultations

The LSCB has consulted with all partner organisations in the preparation for the 
Annual Report and with young people in the development of an alternative version. 

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

 There are no additional direct implications for finance or human resource 
management further to those already provided by LCC and partner agencies 
for LSCB purposes;

Risk management

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Page 23



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel

Lancashire Safeguarding 
Children Board Annual 
Report 2014/15

November 2015 Paul  Hegarty 01772 
538352 

Summary of recent Lancashire LSCB's recent SCRs

Appendices are provided within the agenda pack 

Appendix 'A' - Summary of Learning 2015/16, Serious Case Reviews
Appendix 'B' – Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 2014/15

Page 24



Appendix 'A'

Summary of Learning from 2015/16 SCRs

Child G
Lancashire LSCB is currently undertaking a serious case review that cannot be 
published due to ongoing criminal matters. It involves the death of an infant, Child G, 
aged 13 months. Whilst we cannot share details of the case
yet, learning from the review is already emerging as follows:

Key areas for professionals to consider and challenge themselves
 Question Yourself - Think the Unthinkable
 Consider parental history and use it to assess future risk
 People may want to change but can they do it (and in the timescale of the 

child)?
 Look for evidence – what you see may not be accurate or the full picture
 Show professional scepticism. Beware the "rule of optimism" 
 Sometimes, people lie – sometimes this can be supported by other people
 Remember the impact adult behaviour has on the children they care for – what 

does the child see, experience, feel, think, fear, do?

Full learning brief here: http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/media/10038/SCR-
Learning-Brief-Child-G-October-2015.pdf 

Child L
This was a combined domestic homicide and serious case review, examining the 
deaths of a mother and her young child (Child L), and the subsequent attempted 
suicide of the father who had killed them both in April 2013. It was a tragic and highly 
unusual incident which occurred shortly after the father had first experienced 
symptoms of
psychosis and he was due to participate in a mental health assessment just a few 
hours after he took the lives of his family and attempted to take his own. 

Broadly the issues identified:
 Screening for domestic abuse - consider and explore the possibility even where 

there are no immediate presenting signs
 Information sharing between GPs and Health visitors – ensure all key 

professionals involved are contacted and information is shared and recorded
 Ensure mental health assessments consider risks to any children – discuss with 

other colleagues and agencies where appropriate
 Creating an environment for disclosing that domestic abuse is occurring – 

display information to reassure victims about disclosure - ensure staff are 
trained in this

Full learning brief here: http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/media/8688/SCR-
learning-briefing-Child-L-July-2015.pdf 

Current SCRs in Progress
Young Person 'A' – a Child who previously lived in Lancashire and has died in 
Lincolnshire as a result of his own actions. 

Page 25

http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/media/10038/SCR-Learning-Brief-Child-G-October-2015.pdf
http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/media/10038/SCR-Learning-Brief-Child-G-October-2015.pdf
http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/media/8688/SCR-learning-briefing-Child-L-July-2015.pdf
http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/media/8688/SCR-learning-briefing-Child-L-July-2015.pdf


Appendix 'A'

Child 'O' - 2 year old found dead in the car in the garage with his mother. Family lived 
in 4 areas, thought to be fleeing domestic violence.
Child KG – a near miss involving a child who was smothered and strangled by his 
mother 3 times but survived.

You can view all SCRs published in the last 12 months on our website at this link:
http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/resources/serious-case-reviews.aspx 

Page 26

http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/resources/serious-case-reviews.aspx


 1 

LANCASHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD 

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15 

Published: September 2015 

Appendix 'B'

Page 27



 2 

 

 

1. Foreword by Independent Chair  

 

I have been Chair of the Board since the end of March 2014 so this report reflects on activity during my 

first full year.  It covers the period from April 2014 to the end of March 2015.  As in previous years, it 

presents information about the safeguarding of children across the area covered by Lancashire County 

Council.  

 

Lancashire is an area with a diverse population and complex organisational and governance 

arrangements.  The County Council area encompasses 12 District Councils and six Clinical Commissioning 

Groups who all have key safeguarding roles.  It benefits from the support of a single police force.  Two 

unitary authorities sit within the former geographical footprint of Lancashire County, each with their own 

Safeguarding Children Boards but we operate collaboratively and to a single set of policies and procedures 

wherever possible.   

 

The report seeks to set out what we know about children in our area and their vulnerability, what we 

know about the quality of services and what the continuing challenges are in keeping children and young 

people as safe as is possible.  It remains the case that there are clear links between the prevalence of 

safeguarding issues and deprivation.  Ensuring a clear focus on distribution of need and equitable 

provision of services remains a key challenge. 

 

The report identifies a number of positive developments, including decreases in the numbers of children 

identified as vulnerable due to domestic abuse, going missing from home and as victims of sexual abuse.  

Conversely more children are being looked after by the Local Authority, and more children are of concern 

due to self-harm.   

 

Child Sexual Exploitation has been a major focus for the Board in the last year with very large numbers of 

professionals completing mandatory training.  More referrals have been received which increases the 

potential to protect those vulnerable to this form of sexual abuse. 

 

The report also reflects the work of the Board and its sub-groups. Although there have been some issues 

with attendance at the Board's formal meetings (largely linked to organisational change) agency 

engagement with the Board is strong, and membership is at an appropriately senior level.  The sub-

groups involve a large number of professionals and these groups drive forward the business of the Board.  

 

The Board has benefitted significantly this year from the increased involvement of children and young 

people so that our work has been informed directly by their views and priorities particularly around Chid 

Sexual exploitation and E-safety. 

 

Pressure on resources is a reality for all agencies but the Board has had assurances that front-line 

safeguarding services will be protected.  Around 60,000 professional in Lancashire work with children and 

families in a variety of services and settings; their work is supported by many community initiatives.  

Safeguarding is at the forefront of all they do and my thanks are due to them in respect of their 

continuing commitment. 

 

  
 

Jane Booth 

Independent Chair,  

Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board 

Page 28



 3 

 

 

 

2.  Contents  

  

1 Executive Summary        Page 4 

2 Local Background & Context        Page 6 

 What do we know about Children in Lancashire?    Page 6 

3 What do we know about the effectiveness of Local Services?  Page 9 

4 Statutory and Legislative Context for LSCBs     Page 16 

5 Governance and accountability arrangements    Page 17 

6 Key Achievements from LSCB and Sub-groups    Page 23 

 Case Review          Page 23 

 Learning & Development        Page 23 

 Esafeguarding         Page 24 

 Quality Assurance         Page 25 

 Child Death Overview Panel        Page 26 

 Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)       Page 28 

 Missing from Home         Page 29 

 Children's Partnership Boards       Page 30 

9 LSCB Budget         Page 31 

10 Priorities for 2015/16        Page 33  

11 Contact Details         Page 34 

12 Appendices          Page 35 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



 4 

 

 

 

1.  Executive Summary           

 

Lancashire is a large and diverse county with complex demographics and significant local 

variation in deprivation and levels of need. This annual report has sought to provide a clear 

analysis of characteristics and trends in relation to the safeguarding of children on a multi-agency 

basis. The LSCB and its partner agencies have made significant efforts to address these issues 

and continue to provide generally good services in the face of difficult financial challenges and 

subsequent organisational re-structuring. Throughout these organisational challenges the LSCB 

has continually sought assurance from agencies that any re-structuring of services does not 

negatively impact on the safeguarding of children. This will remain a key feature of LSCB 

challenge. The Annual Audit (Section 11 audit) evidences good levels of compliance with 

safeguarding requirements across the agencies. 

 

The qualitative and quantitative evidence from the analysis of data, audits and reviews is 

summarised in this annual report.  

 

A number of positive indications are evident: 

1.  The percentage of children living in poverty has reduced 

2. More children and young people have been identified as being privately fostered and offered 

support 

3. A reduction in the number of incidents of domestic violence where a child is reported to live at 

the address 

4. A decrease in the number of children going missing from home 

5. A decrease in incidents of violent and sexual offences against a child 

6. An increase in offers of early help - there are fewer children subject to a Child Protection Plan 

than in the previous two years and there is evidence of increasing numbers of children and 

families being provided with early help and the quality of assessments leading to early help is 

improving 

 

 A number of key areas for consideration emerge as follows: 

 

7. There are high rates of children "looked after" by the Local Authority when compared to 

national averages and a significant number of children "looked after" by other local authorities 

placed in care/fostering settings in the county 

8. There has been an increase in the number of concerns about possible Child Sexual 

Exploitation.  There is however no increase in recorded crimes – the increase  in concerns 

reported may be as the result of the increase in basic awareness as a result of mandatory 

training across the agencies 

9. Rates of self-harm, maternal smoking, child mortality rates for children of Asian heritage and 

rates of hospital attendances related to alcohol use by young people are a continuing concern 

10. There is increasing evidence of quality assurance of single agency training being undertaken 

and of the capture of evidence about the impact of training 

 

Most notable among the strengths and achievements of the Board itself are: 

  

Page 30



 5 

 

11. Completion of the Review of the arrangements to safeguard children from Child Sexual 

Exploitation (the CSE Diagnostic) which evidenced much good practice and has led to service 

improvements and provided an effective challenge and stock take for agencies and multi-

agency strategic forums. From this challenge a review of existing strategic arrangement pan-

Lancashire is proposed in December 2015    

12. Engagement with private children's homes, particularly those in the private and independent 

sector 

13. Improved working with the Corporate Parenting Board and Health and Well Being Board 

14. All agencies largely compliant with Section 11 audit standards 

15. Successful delivery of a Safer Sleep Campaign which is seen as a model of excellence  

16. All Serious Case Review referrals considered within timescale and the development of an 

improved process for monitoring implementation of SCR recommendations 

17. Completion of an audit of single agency completions at all levels of training completed with 

results encompassing  46.238 Staff and delivery of learning to 19020 professionals through a 

variety of learning events 

18. Implementation of an electronic sign up system for all training courses / events 

19. Delivery of an  'eSafety Live' conference attended by around 200 professionals with very 

positive feedback 

20. Delivery by the LSCB's Young Advisors project raising awareness of eSafety in primary 

schools 

21. Implementation of a revised quality assurance and performance framework based on that 

recommended for the NW Region 

22. Review and update of the Pan-Lancashire Missing From Home / Care protocol and regular 

(three times per annum) updates of multi-agency child protection procedures. 

23. Delivery of a range of activities to professional and young people during CSE awareness 

week 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 6 

 

 

 

2.  Local Background and Context   

 

Lancashire is a large and diverse Shire County with one County Council and 12 District Councils.  

Within the old county footprint there are two unitary authorities, Blackpool and Blackburn with 

Darwen who have separate administrations and separate Local Safeguarding Children Boards.  

The total population in the Local Authority County Council of Lancashire is approximately 1.17 

million. Within Lancashire, there are pockets of severe social and economic deprivation. Four 

Lancashire Districts (Burnley, Hyndburn, Pendle and Preston) are in the "top 50" most 

disadvantaged in England according to the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2010. There are also 

large areas of economic prosperity such as Ribble Valley and Fylde Borough with "hidden" areas 

of poverty. The map below shows the 'indices of multiple deprivation' across the county with dark 

and red areas identifying the most deprived places (includes unitary authorities of Blackpool and 

Blackburn with Darwen). 

 

Figure 1 – Indices of Deprivation 

 
(Source – LCC JSNA 2013) 

 

 

 

What do we know about Children in Lancashire? 

Lancashire has a child population of around a quarter of a million and within this population.   

The diagram below summarises some of the key data for children at different levels of need from 

high to low. 

Page 32



 7 

 

Figure 2 –Levels of Need 

 
  

Levels of need vary considerably across the county. There is a close correlation between levels 

of need and indices of deprivation, for example the number of children looked after or subject to a 

child protection plan is significantly higher in Burnley, Hyndburn, Preston and Pendle; and 

conversely lower in Rossendale, Ribble Valley and Fylde districts. 

 

Comparator data between Lancashire and national and regional averages on key indicators is 

provided below: (red indicates where performance is significantly worse than the national 

average) 

 

Indicator 2014/15 2013/14 National Avg Regional Avg 

Rate of Children Looked After 

(per 10k) 
67.2 66.3 60 81 

Rate of children subject of a 

Child Protection Plans (per 10k) 
38.9 44.4 42.1  

Rate of Children in Need (per 

10k) 
346.8 371.5 346.4 365.3 

Referrals to Children Social Care 102.5 121.5 N/K N/K 

Low 

Page 33



 8 

 

(rate per 100k) 

Directly standardised rate per 

100,000 (age 10-24 years) for 

hospital admissions for self-harm 

524.3 476.3 412.1 N/K 

Under 18s admitted to hospital 

with alcohol specific conditions: 

rate per 100,000 population 

62.7 71.9 40.1 N/K 

Accident and Emergency 

attendances for children aged 0-

17 years (2010/11 – most recent 

data) 

506.7 380.1 525.6 N/K 

 

Children and young people in Lancashire are less ethnically diverse compared to the rest of the 

country with 12.7% being from black and minority ethnic groups (compared to 21% nationally). 

However there is wide district variation, with Burnley, Hyndburn, Pendle and Preston populations 

displaying the greatest ethnic diversity. 

 

Recognition of the diverse needs of different groups of children is central to all areas of LSCB 

business. Every effort is made to ensure the views of all groups are gathered to inform service 

developments and business planning.  

 

Ensuring appropriate provision and equity of service access is a key challenge for all agencies 

providing services. The increase in the demand for Children's Social Care services evident in 

2013/14 continues when compared to national averages though there appears to be a slowing 

down of this increase on the whole. This has been balanced by a substantial increase in 

CAF/early help interventions which increased from 885 to 1527 in 2014/15, and a reduction in 

children subject to a Child Protection Plan (from 44.4 to 38.9 rate per 10k) though this has yet to 

show any impact in terms of the number of children being "looked after" which has increased to 

67.2 from 66.3 (rate per 10k). Early intervention and prevention is seen to be key to the effective 

management of current service demand and financial challenges. 

 

Child sexual exploitation continues to be a priority for partner agencies in Lancashire with an 

increase in contacts from 505 to 1194 (Pan-Lancashire) in 2014-15. Lancashire continues to 

have challenges around the use of alcohol by young people and self-harm with high rates of 

hospital attendances (see table on page 7).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 9 

 

 

3. What do we know about the effectiveness of Local Services? 

 

Services in Lancashire  

All Board partners are subject to scrutiny through the section 11 audit process on an annual 

basis and there are currently no areas of significant non-compliance.  

Key services in terms of safeguarding are provided/commissioned by the following agencies: 

 

a) Lancashire Constabulary – direct policing and partnership services as part of the Child 

Sexual Exploitation teams, Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub, Multi-Agency Risk 

Assessment Conferences and Multi-agency Public Protection Arrangements. The 

Constabulary has received very positive comments from the Royal College of Policing in 

2014/15, especially in relation to its work on CSE and has been judged as 'outstanding' 

overall by the HMIC during 2015. 

 
CSE Case Study 

A 16 year old male with learning difficulties attended the Genito Urinary Medicine (GUM) clinic, and disclosed that he 

had recently been meeting men following contact on the internet and having unprotected sex. The young person 

attended with an older male, who he said was a family friend. A referral was made to the specialist CSE team for 

further assessment. 

A young person’s worker from the team initially undertook a CSE risk assessment which identified that the young 

person was being paid for sex and that the 52 year old male was gaining from this by taking some of the money. 

This enabled the police to take immediate action with regards to arrest and further investigation. Discussions were 

held with social care and legal advice sought due to the presenting risks and issues about the competency of the 

victim.  

A thorough health assessment was undertaken and a health care plan was formulated in conjunction with the young 

person in order to address any outstanding health needs.  He had little awareness of sexual health risks with regards 

to unprotected sexual intercourse and poor general sexual knowledge or and understanding of risks this posed to his 

health, or from meeting in various remote places.  

There were concerns with regards to the young person’s learning difficulties and that his exact level of understanding 

was unknown, therefore a referral to paediatricians was made to assess his level of learning need which will result in 

professionals involved in his case being able to tailor the work they undertake according to his needs.  

During the health assessment it was identified that the young person was displaying emotional health difficulties. The 

young person reported he had previously self-harmed cutting himself with a knife. As a result of this he was referred 

to community mental health services for a specialist assessment of his emotional health needs. 

b) Lancashire County Council – Support to vulnerable children through direct services from 

Children's Social Care, Early Support Services, Children's Centres and Schools Services 

and specific support for children involved in the criminal justice system via the Youth 

Offending Team (YOT). A range of other council services, including Adult Social Care also 

support families. There has been no recent inspection by OFSTED however in the 2012 

Safeguarding and Looked After Children in February 2012 where Lancashire was judged 

as being 'Good with outstanding features'. Not-withstanding this, a number of 

recommendations for improvements were made and a detailed action plan was developed 

by the Local Authority in collaboration with the LSCB which was signed off as completed. 

The next Ofsted inspection is likely to take place in 2015/16, however the Board has 

completed 2 multi-agency inspections referred to elsewhere in the report. In addition to 

providing services, the local authority commission some of the public health services for 

Page 35



 10 

 

children such as sexual health services and school nursing; from October 2015 they will 

also be responsible for commissioning health visiting and family nurse partnership 

services. 

 

c) Across Lancashire there are six Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) who are 

responsible for commissioning most hospital and community healthcare services.  From 

April 2015 co-commissioning arrangements are being brought in which will see CCGs 

getting involved in the commissioning of primary care services.  

 

d) NHS England is an executive non-departmental public body of the Department of Health 

whose general function is to promote a comprehensive health service. It does this by 

allocating funds to, guiding and supporting CCGs, and holding them to account. They are 

also responsible for commissioning primary care services, specialised health services, 

health care services for those in secure and detained settings and for servicing personnel 

and their families. 

 

e) Six NHS Hospital Trusts – Providing a range of community and acute services including: 

A&E, health visiting, school nursing, CLA nursing, neo/ante natal care, paediatric services 

and a range of specialist services.   

The NHS hospital trusts that serve the Lancashire area as follows: 

1. University Hospital Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust 

2. Southport and Ormskirk Hospital Trust 

3. Lancashire Teaching Hospitals Foundation Trust 

4. Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

5. East Lancashire Hospital Trust 

6. Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust 

 

f) University Hospital Morecambe Bay (UHMB) had been subject to an improvement plan 

since their 2011/12 inspection found the organisation to be inadequate in a number of 

areas including safeguarding. The LSCB has maintained consistent oversight of these 

improvements and sought assurance through senior managers at the LSCB and the (then) 

Local Safeguarding Group in the North of the County. In 2013/14 the action plan for 

safeguarding was signed off as completed by the Trust and agreed by the LSCB. A further 

inspection of the whole Trust by CQC in 2014 placed the Trust into special measures. 

Since the inspection in 2014, staff and leaders from across the hospitals have worked 

together, with their health partners, to make important changes to the way services are 

run.  The Care Quality Commission (CQC) carried out a re-inspection of the hospitals in 

July 2015 which has yet to be published.  Whilst the 2014 inspection resulted in an 

inadequate rating the improvements within the safeguarding processes achieved since 

2012 have been maintained and are monitored by the Board through reports from senior 

managers, quality audits of the Trust Section 11 submission and via the audit of 

safeguarding standards to the CCG through the contract process   

 

g) Ormskirk District General Hospital is one of two hospitals within the Southport and 

Ormskirk NHS Trust. The hospital was subject to a comprehensive inspection of services 

by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) during November 2014. Although the hospital was 

rated overall as requiring improvement, with maternity services being rated as inadequate, 

Page 36



 11 

 

the services for children and young people were rated as good in all areas. The full 

inspection report can be accessed at: http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/RVY02/inspection-

summary#overall   

 

h) East Lancashire Hospital Trust (ELHT) underwent a CQC inspection during 2013/14. 

Although issues and improvements were identified there were no concerns raised in 

relation to safeguarding practice. There was some concerns with the fluctuating number of 

A&E staff trained in safeguarding which has now been addressed and is consistently 

monitored.  

 

i) Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is an acute and community provider 

following a merger on 1st April 2012. The Trust is situated on the west coast of 

Lancashire, and operates within a regional health economy catchment area that spans 

Lancashire and South Cumbria, supporting a population of 1.6 million. A range of acute 

services are provided to the 340,000 population of the Fylde Coast health economy and 

the estimated 11-million visitors to the seaside town of Blackpool. Since 1st April 2012, the 

Trust also provides a wide range of community health services to the 500,000 residents of 

Blackpool, Fylde, Wyre and North Lancashire.  

 

j) The CQC published their quality report on the Trust following an announced inspection 

visit, a review of information from their ‘Intelligent Monitoring’ system and information 

given to them by patients, the public and other organisations. The inspection team 

highlighted that patient care in the hospital was recognised as being good by patients that 

they spoke to and that staff were praised by many who used the service. 

k) Lancashire Teaching Hospitals Foundation Trust operates from two sites, Royal Preston 

Hospital and Chorley and South Ribble Hospital. Both sites were subject to a 

comprehensive CQC inspection in July 2014 and although overall the trust was rated 

“Requires Improvement” it was rated good for children and young people’s services and 

maternity care. It had a very positive focus around children’s safeguarding practices. The 

full CQC report can be accessed at http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RXN. Lancashire 

Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (LTHTR) along with the Local authority was the 

first hospital in the country to go live with Child Protection Information Sharing Project 

(CPIS) November 2014.  LTHTR are now looking forward to other NHS Hospital Trusts, 

urgent care centres and Local Authorities across the country coming on board with CPIS. 

l) Lancashire Care Foundation Trust – Provider of children's (CAMHS) and adults' mental 

health services, Psychology Services and universal children and young people services 

such as health visiting and school nursing in East, Central and West Lancashire. LCFT 

were last inspected by the CQC as part of the Safeguarding and Looked After Children 

inspection where improvements were identified around access to CAMHS as referred to 

above. LCFT have been recently inspected by the CQC (May 2015) which will be reported 

in next year's annual report 

 
Mental Health Case Study 

A single Mother with 4 children was referred to local services due to issues with depression and opiate misuse. 

There was also a history of Domestic Abuse with her ex-partner and the 2 eldest children often argue and fight. The 

mother regularly misses appointments with mental health services to support her presenting issues.   

Page 37

http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/RVY02/inspection-summary#overall
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/RVY02/inspection-summary#overall
http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RXN


 12 

 

The eldest, 14 year old child, is being supported by Adolescent Support Unit due to physical and verbal aggression 

towards her mother and siblings. Poor school attendance is also an issue. 

The youngest child has been observed to exhibit emotional distress in relation to the family relationships and 

unsettled home environment 

This family had been involved with services sporadically for a period of time, with no real improvement. A CAF was 

in place but did not appear to be assisting so a decision was made to refer the case for a social care assessment. 

This resulted in a ‘child in need plan’ which included mum accessing support for her substance misuse and the 

eldest daughter and her mum spending time together in family therapy.  

Through effective support and engagement of key services outcomes for the family started to improve: 

 Mum engaged effectively with support for her substance misuse  

 The eldest daughter's school attendance improved 

 The youngest child was no longer aggressive and appeared happier 

 The family relocated to move away from unsavoury influences 

 The father had more contact with his children and offered financial support 

 

m) Lancashire Probation Trust was last inspected in 2011 and judged to be 'Good'. However, 

the service has now been restructured with 2 arms – the National Probation Service and a 

(private) Community Rehabilitation Company. Both organisations are represented on the 

LSCB and are subject to scrutiny via the section 11 audit process. 

 

n) Cafcass (Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service) is the voice of children 

in the family courts and helps to ensure that their welfare is put first during proceedings. In 

February 2014 Cafcass was inspected by Ofsted.  This was the first time that Cafcass had 

been inspected as a single national organisation. Ofsted found that the quality and 

effectiveness of Cafcass work with children and families in both private law (arrangements 

for children) and public law (care and adoption) was good. 

 

o) Private/Independent Sector Providers – community drug and alcohol services, sexual 

health services, domestic abuse services 

 

p) Housing providers – wide range of private providers, Registered Social Landlords, 
hospices and hostels, sheltered housing provision and local authority housing1 

 
q) Voluntary Community and Faith Sector – over 100 different VCFS organisations providing 

a wide range of service on a commissioned and non-commissioned basis (Eg – carers 
support, advocacy, fostering agencies, lobbying, consultation) 

 

r) Schools – over 700 schools including 30 special schools and 13 short stay schools. There 

are currently no Schools judged to be inadequate with regard to safeguarding 

 

s) Over 100 children's homes with a high percentage of private providers and out of area 

placements (Lancashire is a net importer of CLA)2 there were no judgements of 

inadequate during the period.   

                                            
1 A scoping exercise carried out in 2012/13 concluded that RSLs and Local Authority providers generally had good 

safeguarding arrangements but that private landlords often may not 

2 The LSCB receives notification of any provider that is judged to be inadequate by Ofsted with regard to 

safeguarding 

Page 38



 13 

 

 

t) 79 Children's Centres. All are currently judged to be good or excellent 

 
CAF/ Early Help Case Study 

Parent B was very reluctant for service involvement as a result of previous negative experiences as a child and a 

care leaver. This involvement was due to end shortly when parent B reached 21 years old, but following a recent 

incident and parent B becoming pregnant, the case was re-assessed for an offer of an early help service. 

 

During the initial visit Parent B agreed to being supported through the early help. Family strengths were identified 

through the assessment process so these could be built upon, unmet needs identified and a multi-agency supported 

plan agreed to assist with meeting these. Parent B was fully included in all aspects of her family plan/CAF and the 

lead professional ensured that Parent B fully understood what would happen. 

 

Following support with accessing a range of services Parent B achieved a number of positive outcomes as follows: 

 A healthy pregnancy and give birth to healthy baby 

 A significant reduction in smoking and associated risks 

 Now receiving all benefits entitled to 

 Now has a successful tenancy in suitable housing 

 Access to domestic violence support services 

 Access to community volunteering and employment training 

Parent B was very positive about the 'great support' received and feels her life has improved substantially. 

 

u) 909 child minders, 343 day nurseries and 161 pre-school play groups. 10 of which were 

judged to be inadequate with issues relating to safeguarding during the period 

 

Children and families are also supported by many of the smaller private and voluntary sector 

organisations who work on a local basis in response to local need. The larger organisations 

provide or commission a range of services on a countywide basis but given the size and diversity 

of Lancashire service equity is a significant challenge. 

 

The Board itself exercises challenge and scrutiny of agencies using a number of mechanisms for 

assessing the quality of local services and agencies commitment to safeguarding children. These 

include: 

 

Multi-Agency Practice Inspections 

2 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Practice Inspections have been completed in 2014/15. One was a 

countywide themed inspection of Multi-agency Early Help Arrangements. The other was a district 

based inspection using the Ofsted framework in the district of Burnley. These involved a range of 

activities including case audits, focus groups, data analysis, interviews with key officers and 

observation of practice. A multi-agency inspection team carried out these activities together with 

a group of 'Young Inspectors' who provided feedback from the perspective of children and young 

people. The inspections highlighted a number of areas of strength and areas for improvement. 

Some of the key findings are summarised in appendix 1. 

 

Section 11 Audit Process:  

Section 11 of the Children Act 2004 sets out agencies responsibilities in respect of safeguarding 

children and the LSCB conducts an annual audit in all member agencies.  The section 11 audit 

tool and quality assurance process were updated in 2013-14 to ensure all agencies are 

rigorously assessed with regard to having the necessary arrangements in place as specified.  

Compliance levels are generally high across the standards set out in the audit. The most 

Page 39



 14 

 

commonly recorded deficits are around training and supervision arrangements where not all staff 

have been trained to the correct level or have access to specialist safeguarding reflective 

supervision. Where these issues were present assurance has been provided that improvements 

are progressing and this has been confirmed through the quality assurance and challenge 

process and a further monitoring process requiring agencies to give regular updates on progress. 

There are no outstanding 'red' indicators for any of the agencies at present. 

 

Themed Audits 

Themed audits were completed around the understanding and application of 'thresholds' (as 

defined in the Continuum of Need) which was the priority for 2014/15 in the LSCB QA 

Framework. One of the audits looked at a sample of CAF assessments the other looked at 

referrals to CSC across the 3 localities of Lancashire. 

 

CAF Audit - (September 2014) 

The findings from this audit were very positive in that nearly all the CAFs were felt to be at the 

appropriate level of need.  There were some quality issues which have informed future plans for 

workforce development around the use of CAF. 

 

Referrals Audit – (October 2014) 

The findings from this audit were positive in that the majority of referrals were felt to be at the 

appropriate level of need for a child in need of help or protection. Again there were some quality 

and practice issues around themes such as information sharing, analysis of information, inclusion 

& consideration of historical information and identification of risk. 

 

Multi-agency Performance and Quality Framework 

During 2014/15 the LSCB has adopted the regional LSCB framework which provides an 

extensive compendium of multi-agency performance and qualitative information relating to all 

aspects of safeguarding, health and wellbeing. Collating and analysing all the information in the 

framework has proved to be a challenging and resource intensive task which will continue into 

2015/16 when it is hoped a dedicated post will be available to complete and maintain this 

framework. Notwithstanding this, however, a summary of the analysis to date has been 

developed and the key themes discussed on the LSCB's development day to inform future 

priorities and the business plan.  

 

Annual Reports 

The Board also receives a number of annual reports in relation to key multi-agency services as 

follow: 

  

1. LADO (local authority designated officer)  

2. CAF / Early Help 

3. Counter Terrorism  

4. Domestic Abuse 

5. IRO   (independent reviewing officer) 

6. MAPPA (multi-agency public protection arrangements) 

7. Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 

8. Secure Estate  (young offenders institutes) 

9. Private Fostering  

Page 40



 15 

 

 

A summary of key findings from each of these reports for 2014/15 is available at appendix 2. 

 

Themes from Child Death Reviews 

The Child Death Overview Panel reviews every child death in the county and analyses any 

factors that may have lead to the death in order to identify themes and trends for preventative 

measures. A summary of the key findings for 2014/15 are as follows: 

 89% of deaths reviewed during 2014/15 were completed within 12 months 

 10% of deaths were of children from an Asian Pakistani heritage, this is dis-proportionately 

represented compared with the child population of 6% in the 2011 census 

 61% of children were aged under 1 year old (36% under 28 days and 25% 28 – 264 days) 

 36% of deaths were due to perinatal/ neonatal events with 21% due to chromosomal, 

genetic and congenital anomalies 

 24% of death were identified to have modifiable factors* 

 Of the 24% of deaths identified to have modifiable factors the most common category of 

death was perinatal neonatal events (26%) the second largest category was trauma and 

other external factors (20%) whereas for pan-Lancashire it was sudden unexpected, 

unexplained deaths 

 The four most common modifiable factors were access to service provision, parenting 

capacity, alcohol/ substance misuse in a parent/carer and smoking 

*Factors which could be modified to reduce the risk of future child deaths 

Page 41



 16 

 

 

Statutory and Legislative Context for LSCBs   

 

Section 14 of the Children Act 2004 and Working Together to Safeguard Children 2015 sets out 

the statutory objectives and functions for an LSCB as follows: 

 

1. To coordinate what is done by each person or body represented on the Board for the 

purposes of safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children in the area; and  

2. To ensure the effectiveness of what is done by each such person or body for those purposes. 

Regulation 5 of the Local Safeguarding Children Boards Regulations 2006 sets out that the 

functions of the LSCB, in relation to the above objectives under section 14 of the Children Act 

2004, are as follows:  

1(a) developing policies and procedures for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of 

children in the area of the authority, including policies and procedures in relation to:  

(i) the action to be taken where there are concerns about a child’s safety or welfare, 

including thresholds for intervention;  

(ii) training of persons who work with children or in services affecting the safety and 

welfare of children;  

(iii) recruitment and supervision of persons who work with children;  

(iv) investigation of allegations concerning persons who work with children;  

(v) safety and welfare of children who are privately fostered;  

(vi) cooperation with neighbouring children’s services authorities and their Board partners;  

(b) communicating to persons and bodies in the area of the authority the need to 

safeguard and promote the welfare of children, raising their awareness of how this can 

best be done and encouraging them to do so;  

(c) monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of what is done by the authority and their 

Board partners individually and collectively to safeguard and promote the welfare of 

children and advising them on ways to improve;  

(d) participating in the planning of services for children in the area of the authority; and  

(e) undertaking reviews of serious cases and advising the authority and their Board 

partners on lessons to be learned.  

Regulation 5 (2) which relates to the LSCB Serious Case Reviews function and regulation 6 

which relates to the LSCB Child Death functions are covered in chapter 4 of the guidance.  

Regulation 5 (3) provides that an LSCB may also engage in any other activity that facilitates, 

or is conducive to, the achievement of its objectives. 

 

In order to fulfil its statutory function under regulation 5 an LSCB should use data and, as a 

minimum, should: 

 assess the effectiveness of the help being provided to children and families, including 

early help; 

 assess whether LSCB partners are fulfilling their statutory obligations set out in chapter 

2 of this guidance; 

 quality assure practice, including through joint audits of case files involving 

practitioners and identifying lessons to be learned; and 

 monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of training, including multi-agency training, to 

safeguard and promote the welfare of children 

Page 42



 17 

 

 

5.  Governance and accountability arrangements  

 

The LSCB is now inspected as part of the local area Safeguarding and Looked After Children 

inspections carried out by Ofsted and according to the most recent guidance will receive a 

separate assessment and judgement. Previously it was assessed within the wider framework, as 

per the 2012 inspection in Lancashire where the LSCB was referred to positively. Lancashire was 

not inspected during 2013/14 so there is nothing to report in this respect.  

The LSCB is structured as illustrated below. The chair is held to account by the Chief Executive 

of the Local Authority and its partners through a process of standardised appraisal. A challenge 

for the coming year will be embedding the new structures around the CPBs.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Full Board membership can be seen at: http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/about-us/board-structure.aspx  

** Pan Lancashire Groups 

 

The LSCB Executive Group continues to carry out the executive function and deals with the 

general business of the Board and has oversight of the Budget, Business Plan, performance 

information, risk register and any themed reports or annual reports required by the LSCB. The 

LSCB holds the Executive to account and ratifies / challenges any decisions made by the 

LSCB 
Executive Group 
Executive Group 

Case Review Sub-group 

Learning & Development Sub-
group 

Burnley & Pendle Children's 
Partnership Board 

Preston Children's Partnership 
Board 

Locality Group 

ESafety Sub-group 

Quality Assurance & Performance 
Management Sub-group 

Child Death Overview Panel** 

Child Sexual Exploitation 
Sub-group** 

Hyndburn, Ribble Valley & 
Rossendale Children's Partnership 

Board 
Locality Group 

Children's & Young 

People's Trust 

Board 

Partnership Board 

LSCB* 

Health & Well-

being Board 

Chorley, South Ribble & West 
Lancashire Children's Partnership 

Board 
Locality Group 

Lancaster, Fylde & Wyre 
Children's Partnership Board 

Locality Group 
Missing from Home 

Sub-group** 

Community Safety 

Strategy Group 

Page 43

http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/about-us/board-structure.aspx


 18 

 

Executive where necessary. In 2014/15 the Local Safeguarding Groups were merged with the 

District Children's Trusts which resulted in 5 Children's Partnership Boards which bring partners 

together locally under the wider children's agenda. The LSCB holds these to account for 

delivering effective safeguarding services locally and ensuring safeguarding is embedded in their 

priorities and plans. 

 

Strategic Priorities 

Partnerships in Lancashire such as the LSCB, Children and Young people's Trust, Health and 

Well Being Board and Community Safety Partnership all produce detailed strategic plans setting 

out the key outcomes to be achieved within a 3 year timescale. These plans are based on a 

detailed analysis of the needs, the aspirations of the Lancashire residents and the resources 

available to organisations to meet these needs and aspirations. The LSCB has arrangements in 

place to share its annual report with these key strategic groups and join up the business planning 

processes so priorities can be shared and reflected accordingly. 

 

The LSCB Chair is also a member of the Children and Young Peoples Trust and the Health & 

Wellbeing Board. A protocol is in place to define the relationship between the groups and their 

chairs.  

 

The LSCB's broad strategic priorities are currently as follows: 

 

The Board will ensure that:  

1. We improve the way we work by listening to and responding to the views and experiences 

of children and young people.  

2. We make sure that services work well together, taking and sharing responsibility, to keep 

children and young people safe.  

3. We make sure that the way we recruit, train and supervise those who work with children 

and young people will keep children and young people as safe as possible.  

4. We make sure that everybody who works with children and young people knows that 

keeping them safe is an important part of their job.  

 

The Board will take action to:  

5. Help children, young people, their families and communities keep themselves safe and 

know how to get help.  

6. Monitor how well agencies safeguard and protect children and will challenge them when 

there are concerns about their performance.  

7. Use Board resources effectively to give the best results for children and young people.  

8. Implement necessary changes that come from research, serious case reviews and any 

national policy guidelines. 

 

These priorities are part of a 3 year strategy, some of which have received significant attention to 

date and others will continue into subsequent years. 

 

The following groups of children are recognised by the LSCB as potentially experiencing greater 

vulnerability: 

 Children in Custody 

 Children who are privately fostered 

Page 44



 19 

 

 Children who are sexually exploited  

 Children with disabilities 

 Children Looked After, particularly those moving out of or into Lancashire 

 Children of Travellers (especially educational outcomes, immunisations)  

 Children with a parent in prison 

 Children missing from home or care 

 

LSCB Business Plan 

The LSCB has a well-developed business planning framework / cycle based on the strategic 

priorities detailed above. The business plan is written and agreed at the start of the financial year 

following a review of the previous year's plan to ensure continuity and carry forward of key 

priorities where applicable. Progress is monitored at every Executive meeting using a 'RAG' 

system to identify where activities are not progressing as planned and agree corrective action. 

The plan is a dynamic document which is regularly refreshed and amended to take account of 

unforeseen changes or external factors that may come to light in year.  The priorities and tasks 

within the plan are, in the main, delivered through the work of the sub-groups. However, a 

number of developments are delivered directly by the LSCB Executive, the Chair and the 

management team.  During 2014-15 the Board undertook a range of specific activities related to 

its priorities: 

 

Children in Custody 

At its meeting in January 2015 the Board focussed on safeguarding in secure settings.  It 

received reports about placements of children and was provided with assurance by the Youth 

Offending team as to the work undertaken to ensure appropriate safeguards were in place. This 

included assurance that 100% of placements were compliant with national standards with regard 

to assessment and planning. 

 

Children who are privately fostered 

The Board receives an annual report about the work undertaken by the Local Authority to ensure 

this group of children are identified and that appropriate support is given.  The number of such 

children being identified has increased, enabling support to be offered as appropriate.     

 

Children who are sexually exploited 

A comprehensive 'diagnostic' assessment of current multi-agency CSE arrangements was 

undertaken in Q4 of 2014/15 looking at a range of information and data from all agencies. The 

aim of this was to understand how effective current arrangements are and where improvements 

may be required. A detailed report was completed by the LSCB Chair which identified both areas 

of good practice and areas requiring further development.  All agencies were asked to consider 

and respond to so the LSCB could be assured that recommendations were being taken forward. 

The diagnostic has been explored with key statutory leaders, in particular the Lancashire County 

Council Chief Executive and Chief Constable and Police and Crime Commissioner and a number 

of positive changes have taken place.. Other strategic developments around improved 

performance monitoring and quality assurance are proposed and will be progressed in 2015/16 

and will be reported in the next annual report. 

 

 

 

Page 45



 20 

 

Children with a parent in prison 

The regional iHOP coordinator attended the January board meeting to outline the evidence of 

vulnerability of this group and the work they do in supporting children with a parent in prison. 

These children are highly vulnerable to poor outcomes but this is often not recognised by 

agencies as part of the wider safeguarding agenda. All agencies agreed to raise awareness of 

these issues and promote the supporting resources at the iHOP website and explore developing 

a notification process via the MASH when a vulnerable child or family was identified.  A 

conference is planned in 2015/16 further explore this issue. 

 

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) 

Following a number of concerns arising from Serious case Reviews, inspection and audit activity 

about access to, and the effectiveness of CAMHS the LSCB Chair presented a report to the 

Health and Well-being Board (HWBB) by way of scrutiny and challenge. Following this it was 

agreed a full review of current arrangements would be carried out by the HWBB and the service 

re-commissioned and re-structured in line with the findings to address concerns raised.  

 

Children Looked After, particularly those moving out of or into Lancashire 

 

a) Health Assessments of CLA 

Analysis of performance data highlighted issues to the LSCB around the timeliness of health 

assessments for children who are "looked after" in Lancashire. Following challenge from the 

LSCB corrective action was agreed between the Local Authority and Health Agencies and 

improvement targets set. By the end of year improvements were clearly evident and these are 

expected to continue into 2015/16 when full compliance should be achieved. 

 

b) Relationship with Corporate Parenting Board (CPB) 

During 2014/15 the LSCB Chair has liaised closely with the Chair of the CPB (who oversee 

arrangements for CLA in Lancashire). This has led to much closer joint working between the 2 

Boards and an agreement that the CPB Chair attends the LSCB once a year with an annual 

report on the effectiveness of arrangements for CLA across county. A challenge event in planned 

in 2015/16 which will be reported in next years report. 

 

c) Private Children's Homes Engagement Event 

Linked to the above, the LSCB held a large conference in 2014 to improve engagement with 

Private Children's homes, raise awareness of current safeguarding issues and provide advice 

and support via local agencies. This was attended by over 100 representatives from private 

children's homes and feedback provided was very positive.  

 

Children missing from home or care 

The LSCB (in partnership with unitary colleagues) has revised the Pan-Lancashire operational 

protocol for children missing from home and care and work is currently ongoing to agree and 

develop a set of performance measures which will be reported to the LSCB regularly. The LSCB 

has also considered an audit of cases completed by the Local Authority which has informed 

future planning and developments into 2015/16.  

 

Other specific initiatives: 

 

Page 46



 21 

 

Schools Safeguarding Audit 

Late in 2014/15 key Board members from the schools sector came together to discuss how the 

LSCB can be assured that schools have effective safeguarding arrangements in place (as 

defined in Section 175 of the Education Act). Currently a proposal has been drafted which will be 

further developed and implemented in 2015/16 to improve the efficacy of the approach. 

 

Organisational Re-structuring 

Due to the significant reductions in resources for partner agencies in recent years the LSCB 

Chair has asked all agencies to regularly report on their planned restructures so any impact on 

safeguarding can be mitigated. The County Council have provided detailed reports, 

correspondence and assurance in light of their significant restructuring which will continue into 

next year and beyond. 

 

Innovation Fund Bid – REACh (Routine enquiry about childhood adversity)  

The LSCB recently made a pan-Lancashire bid to the DFE innovation fund for support with a 

project looking at improving support and engagement with young people who go missing from 

home or care.  Unfortunately this bid was unsuccessful but other options are being explored with 

funding from the board and possible other partners including the Police and Crime Commissioner 

and police innovation fund.  

 

Alignment with the Lancashire Safeguarding Adult Board (LSAB) 

During 2014/15, the LSAB became a statutory function with the introduction of the new Care Act. 

Through discussion with partner agencies and the 2 Boards it was agreed the current LSCB 

management team be expanded to manage the functioning of both Boards. This has required an 

agreement for additional financial contributions from partners, a restructure of the current team 

and the establishment of several new posts. This work is progressing into 2015/16 when it should 

be completed and the new team operational.  

 

Domestic Abuse Commissioning Strategy 

The County Community Safety Manager was invited to the September 2014 LSCB meeting to 

present this new commissioning strategy which seeks to ensure more responsive and equitable 

services for children and adults suffering the effects of domestic abuse. A number of actions 

were agreed to resolve some of the outstanding issues such as the longer term funding sources 

and governance / reporting arrangements.     

 

National Association of LSCB Chairs 

The LSCB agreed to provide a financial contribution to the National Association of LSCB Chairs 

to ensure its sustainability and continued support to LSCBs and their Chairs. 

 

 

LSCB Performance 

The LSCB also has performance indicators which relate to the effectiveness of the LSCB, with 

the year-end returns as follows: 

 

Indicator 

 

2013/14 2014/15 Target 

Direction 

of Travel 

(at Q4) 

Page 47



 22 

 

Attendance at LSCB 

Meetings* 

 75% 69 80% 
Worse 

Percentage of Business Plan 

Actions completed within 

timescales 

 90% 95% 90% 

Improved 

SCRs referrals considered 

within timescale 

 100% 100% 100% 
Same 

Number of cases reviewed by 

CDOP 

 Not 

Available 

84 N/A 
N/A 

 

*A full breakdown of attendance by agency can be viewed at appendix 3.  

 

The LSCB also has in place; a risk management framework and risk register which is reviewed 

twice a year to ensure the appropriate controls are in place to mitigate against key risks to the 

delivery of LSCB business and the effectiveness of the partnership. 

 

Views of Children, Young People  

Within recent years the LSCB had developed robust arrangements for involving children and 

young people in various aspects of its work and seeking their views as appropriate. Specifically 

within 2014/15 the following  

 

a) Engagement in national 'take over day' - a young person co-chaired the LSCB meeting 

which proved a rewarding and useful experience and challenged LSCB members to 

ensure dialogue is meaningful and accessible to young people 

b) Involvement of the Young Inspectors in multi-agency practice inspections (see above) 

c) Completion of the Lancaster Young Advisors peer tutoring project (with support from the 

eSafety Sub-group) where a group of young advisors delivered eSafety awareness raising 

sessions in a number of primary schools across county. These were very well received 

with positive feedback from children and teachers   

d) Presentation to the LSCB of the Corporate Parenting Board annual report by looked after 

young people 

e) Engagement of young people in a CSE conference which informed a parallel event for 

adults and influenced the CSE Strategy 

 

As part of the SCR process the LSCB routinely consults and seeks the views of family members 

in relation to the review and ensures their views are appropriately reflected. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 23 

 

6. Key Achievements from LSCB Sub-groups 

 

The work of the Board is delivered through a range of themed sub-groups as illustrated in the 

Board structure. Each sub-group has its own work plan which is drawn from the LSCB Business 

Plan which in turn is based around the Boards strategic priorities. The work plans have been 

reviewed for the year and key achievements are as follows: 

 

Case Review Group 

To consider referrals for SCRs against the criteria, commission case reviews and monitor 

implementation of single and multi-agency learning from case reviews. 

SCR Activity 2014/5 

Commenced:  3 young people (1 out of area) 

Published:   0    (3 reports have been published since April 2015) 

On-going:   5 young people (2 out of area) 

 Led on one SCR involving five other local authorities 

 Developed effective working arrangements with an aligned DHR review 

 

Key Achievements 2014/15 

 Developed a clear link to SCR learning outcomes and action monitoring  

 Developed and cascaded learning lessons to all partner agencies to inform future 

professional practice  

 Full engagement in the NW Regional chairs initiative to increase the availability of local 

reviewers.  

 Maintained performance and focus in the face of a high number of SCRs 

 

Priorities for 2015/16 

 Review action planning report format to ensure effective link a learning framework that will 

evidence impact and outcomes 

 Develop a wider pool of external and internal reviewers 

 Refresh terms of reference and membership  

 Strengthen links to the CDOP panel 

 Explore opportunities to further develop joint working on Domestic Homicide Reviews and 

links with adult Serious Case Reviews 

 Consider referrals against criteria for Serious Case Reviews 

 Review process document and agree new templates and associated documents 

 Ensure messages from case reviews are widely disseminated within all agencies  

 Align the LSCB SCR and Multi-agency Learning Review (MALR) process to the emerging 

LSAB board alignment 

 

Learning & Development 

The principal purpose of LSCB learning & development sub-group is to promote learning and 

development. 

Key Achievements for 2014/15 

 1669 places were provided to professionals who attended LSCB face-to-face training 

events, and 17351 places were provided and completed for e-learning, making a total of 

19020 places provided via the LSCB learning programme 

Page 49



 24 

 

 In 2013-14, L&D sub planned 84 training events. Of those, 8 were cancelled. An additional 

8 events were added through the year. In total, 84 courses/seminars/conferences were 

delivered 

 Held SCR briefings,  with a joint programme with Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool 

LSCBs, which were evaluated and found to provide excellent learning 

 Provided advice/consultancy to 64 organisations which approached the LSCB Training 

Unit 

 Recruited new members to the training pool to replace the members who left  

 Implemented on-line sign up system for all courses  

 Expanded the programme to include more ways of learning to ensure we offer a diversity 

of learning opportunities which make learning and development accessible for the 

workforce across agencies in Lancashire. Shorter workshops have proved to be in 

demand 

 Brought new learning and research into SCR learning seminars 

 Met six times in the year, sub-group membership healthy and works well 

 Contributed to the regional learning by membership and contributions to North West Inter 

Agency Trainers group  

 Provided a course on 'creating safer organisations' aimed at voluntary sector 

organisations 

 Development and publication of 'seven minute briefings' on a monthly basis 

 

Priorities for 2015/16 

 Develop robust arrangements for assessing the impact of training on practice and 

outcomes for children and families  

 Continue to develop a high quality learning and development programme for 2015-16 

 Continue to manage the allocated financial and other resources effectively to ensure the 

continued delivery of a high quality learning and development programme, recognising the 

financial constraints that may be applied 

 Manage the alignment with the LSAB to ensure the maintenance of performance whilst 

assisting in the development of the adult board learning and development function 

 Continue to invest in the practitioner-trainers who deliver the bulk of LSCB training 

 Continue to streamline the course administration process and to automate as many 

processes as possible 

 Fully understand the gaps in respect to safeguarding learning and development amongst 

Lancashire's workforce 

 Respond to the learning and development needs identified within safeguarding practice, 

Serious Case Reviews, Child Death Reviews and Multi Agency Learning Reviews 

 Continue to communicate and ensure the participation of young people in the work of the 

L&D sub  

 Develop a process for determining that learning and development has had improved 

outcomes for children and families 

 

ESafeguarding 

To raise awareness and support agencies in protecting young people from the risks associated 

with the use of the internet and social media. 

Key Achievements for 2014/15 

Page 50



 25 

 

 Lancaster Young Advisors transition project delivered in selected Primary schools 

across Lancashire.  Useful evidence-base established of views of Y5 & Y6 children on 

what would make the Internet a better place 

 Esafety Live 2015, Conferences delivered successfully with large attendance from 

colleagues across the children’s workforce.  Associated events also held in Blackpool 

and Liverpool on consecutive days as part of regional approach.  Important evidence-

base established on issues arising and areas colleagues would like to see more 

support with 

 Continued engagement across related safeguarding areas in spite of challenging 

organisational and financial circumstances 

 Engagement with locality/borough colleagues to raise awareness of online safety in 

support of Parental/Community Engagement priority 

 Liaison with CSE Focus Group to establish views around Online CSE and suggested 

improvements 

 Increased engagement at National level with Central Government agencies to support 

aspects of online safety (e.g. advice given re: online radicalisation/school engagement) 

 Invitation to join Safer Internet Day Stakeholder Group informing priorities, themes and 

activities for annual (International) Safer Internet Day 

 Successful progression of eSafeguarding Strategy Action Plan priorities and 

identification of new and emerging threats facing C&YP 

 

Priorities for 2015/16 

 Secure and host ESL 2016 across region as part of collaborative approach and repeat 

survey of children’s workforce to establish requirements 

 Review current Action Plan for currency and reflect findings of ESL 2015/16 to inform 

future progression 

 Secure high-level commitment from partner agencies to allow longer-term strategic 

approach in addressing eSafeguarding agenda 

 Further develop partnership activities to support aims and co-ordinate approach 

 Populate online presence with selected recommended resources and good practice 

 Identify and develop response to emerging risk areas 

 Review and re-focus on Safer Learning objective to support teaching and learning 

practices across the region 

 Review national developments (e.g. Ofsted Inspection Criteria) and develop effective 

approach to support positive outcomes (e.g. recommended good practice) 

 Continuation and development of Pan-Lancashire eSafeguarding Group as central 

resource of expertise and co-ordinating group for agency activity across partners 

 Continued representation on National groups and associated agendas to highlight 

Lancashire issues and inform national progression 

 Reflect national developments (e.g. Ofsted) and embed as good practice where applicable 

 Develop engagement with regional and national partners to further collective priorities and 

share expertise/good practice 

Continued support for member agencies in developing provision and supporting best practice 

 

 

 

Page 51



 26 

 

Quality Assurance  

To provide the LSCB with a qualitative and quantitative evidence base to demonstrate how 

effective multi-agency safeguarding practices and arrangements are. 

Key Achievements for 2014/15 
1. Completed 2 multi-agency safeguarding practice inspections – a themed countywide 

inspection of Early Help and a local inspection in Burnley 
2. Obtained section 11 audits from all statutory agencies in Lancashire with no areas of non-

compliance 
3. Completed peer reviews on 6 agencies with regard to their section 11 audit returns and 

agreed a number of improvements 
4. Completed multi- agency audits of CAFs and referrals to CSC across the County to 

determine whether thresholds are well understood and applied consistent 
5. Presented Lancashire's Multi-Agency Safeguarding Practice Inspections as an example of 

good practice at the regional LSCB Quality Assurance and Performance Seminar 
6. Made significant progress in implementing the regional LSCB Quality Assurance and 

Performance Management Framework 
7. Developed an Audit Monitoring Log to ensure recommendations from audits are 

implemented and reported back to the LSCB 
8. Established regular QA reporting of Early Help and CAF arrangements 
9. Developed a combined CCG / S11 audit tool to prevent duplication for Health Agencies 
10. Completed Multi-Agency workshops outlining Lancashire's Assessment and Planning 

Framework 
 
Priorities for 2015/16 

 Completion of 2 further multi-agency safeguarding practice inspections 

 Completion of a practitioner survey across all agencies to ensure their views are 
understood and inform service planning 

 Further development and analysis of the regional framework via a dedicated resource 

 Continued QA of section 11 audits through multi-agency site visits 

 Establish better connectivity and reporting with the CSE and MFH sub-groups so QA 
activities are joined up 

 Continue to monitor progress with recommendations and actions from audits and MASPIs 

 Establish a standing multi-agency audit group 

 Complete an audit of the safeguarding arrangement for CLA placed in Lancashire from 
other areas via the audit group 

 Complete a focus group with practitioners on the response to non-accidental injuries 

 Audit of CSE cases in relation to the MASH to assess how effective it is and identify any 
barriers to further development 

 

 

Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) 

Reviews all child deaths in Lancashire to identify themes and trends to inform preventative 

developments 

Key Achievements 2014/15 

Safer Sleep Campaign: The Campaign has continued to supply professionals with materials to 

support them in providing consistent messages to parents/ carers across pan-Lancashire. There 

are plans to: develop the materials with a risk assessment tool, commission a pharmacy 

campaign with Public Health and commission training from the Lullaby Trust for front line 

professionals. There has also been Regional interest in the materials which is very positive and 

will help in providing regionally consistent messages and reduce cross-border differences 

Page 52



 27 

 

particularly for acute trusts. During the forthcoming year we will look to place a bulk order of 

materials with Merseyside and Cheshire East which will benefit pan-Lancashire by reducing the 

unit price of materials, we will try to promote the materials with other LSCBs in the Region too. 

The Safer Sleep Guidance has been updated and ratified by Professor Helen Ball (Professor of 

Anthropology at Durham University, specialising in infant sleep)  

 

CDOP Newsletter: The Panel produced its first CDOP newsletter to raise awareness to particular 

issues and dangers in December 2013. The feedback received was very positive and more are 

planned for 2015/16. 

 

CDOP Development Day: A half day development day was held in March 2015 which a 

discussion regarding the effectiveness of the sub-groups and what priorities they should have, 

panel member responsibilities, identification of the Panel's 2015/16 priorities and a review of how 

consistent the CDOP is. This involved a number of cases which were selected at random being 

re-anonymised and put to the Panel for a second review without their knowledge (during the 

2014/15 reporting year). The cases were given a full discussion and a form C documenting the 

Panel decisions and identification of issues was also completed. The cases were presented to 

the development day delegates to review and compare the original decisions with the second 

decisions. Overall it was concluded the Panel are relatively consistent in their decision making, 

they are improving in identifying modifiable factors and how these are recorded. However, it was 

noted there still appears to be similar issues across agencies particularly in relation to information 

sharing that are still relevant. 

 

SUDC Protocol Launch: CDOP have successfully overseen the review and update of the pan-

Lancashire SUDC Protocol, a multi-agency document to inform professionals of their 

responsibilities following the unexpected death of a child/ young person. The three Boards 

ratified this document in March 2014 and it was widely disseminated. The protocol multi-agency 

training will be available throughout 2014/15. 

 

Self-Assessment Tool: The Panel completed a self-assessment tool based on Working Together 

(2013), the Terms of Reference and additional factors that provide extra value to the CDOP. All 

items are green with the exception of 3 which are amber and ongoing. 

Priorities for 2015/16: 

 Identify a new chair for January 2016 

 Establish a CDOP database 

 Review and update the Safer Sleep Guidance 

 Review of SUDC Service 

 Thematic review around unascertained and SUDI deaths 

 

Child Sexual Exploitation 

Strategic multi-agency group to ensure a coordinated multi agency response to CSE. 

 

Key Achievements for 2014/15 

 College of Policing Peer Review deemed the response to CSE as “good” in Lancashire. 

The review team found sound partnership working taking place and that the LSCB 

diagnostic tool is a positive step. 

Page 53



 28 

 

 Record numbers of referrals to the CSE teams 2014-2015= 1515. An increase can be 

seen as a positive step as more victims are identified and able to engage with the CSE 

teams for means of support. 

 CSE Awareness week (Operation Toledo) – Conference with highlights from CPS; a victim 

from Rotherham and the Awaken CSE team. The week was highlighted in terms of 

success in delivering awareness raising across the County; supporting operational activity 

and providing the communities with advice on all aspects of CSE 

 CSE Awareness Day in February 2015. All agencies undertook activities promoting 

awareness of CSE   

 Taxi Licensing Boards across Lancashire agree to consistent approach in raising 

awareness of CSE and improving application process to safeguard vulnerable people. The 

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner (OPCC) and Public Protection Unit (PPU) HQ 

have held briefings to gain the support of the licensing departments in introducing a robust 

application and renewal process to protect those most vulnerable 

 Childrens Partnership Boards adopting the delivery of local initiatives to evidence the CSE 

Strategy and Action Plan. The CSE strategy and Action Plan have been delivered to all 

Boards across the County who will now undertake activity specific within their area in line 

with the objectives of the Pan-Lancashire plan 

 Creation of Online Child Abuse Investigation Team (OCAIT) team in Lancashire 

Constabulary. A specialist team of Detectives has now been created to deal with Online 

Child Abuse investigations. The team work closely with the National Crime Agency and 

regional operations as well as those reported within Lancashire 

 Expansion of specialist resources within the CSE teams, notably in the North and South of 

the County. Satellite teams have been established in both Lancaster and Skelmersdale as 

demand has been identified and reported 

 Briefing on CSE delivered to all Cabinet members and county councillors 

 Lancashire Constabulary has promoted the work of the multi-agency teams in London 

following national work undertaken to determine the threat of CSE 

 LSCB Online training on CSE undertaken by 8488 staff members. LSCB face to face 

training delivered to 43 delegates 

 

Priorities for 2015/16 

 Engagement with Education establishments. Challenges still exist in ensuring all children 

and school staff receive the right level of training and support. 

 Greater awareness raising in BME and harder to reach communities; Leisure and Hotel 

industries. Methods and means of engagement with these members of the community are 

being canvassed in order to tailor the correct and most effective approach. 

 Pan-Lancashire training to greater numbers of professionals through larger and more 

concise sessions. 3 events have been organised so far to 100 + professionals  

 Continued engagement with Children and Young people to deliver services by, and for, 

them. Participation leads within Authorities to be encouraged to provide cohort and Young 

Peoples conference work to continue 

 Collaborative work with licensing departments to ensure safeguarding of vulnerable 

people. Enhanced training and application and renewal process to take effect for Taxi 

drivers. 

Page 54



 29 

 

 Continued collaborative Pan-Lancashire approach to achieving strategic objectives. The 

Group will ensure the approach to CSE continues to be as a result of collaborative work 

across the whole of Lancashire.  

 Continue to undertake reviews of national and regional research and publications in the 

field and make recommendations and share best practices 

 Ensure Multi-agency Sexual Exploitation (MASE) meetings are delivering a multi-agency 

Pan-Lancashire response to the needs of children and young people  in their respective 

areas  

 Childrens Society commission to deliver CSE training in Lancashire’s schools. The 

commission of work will deliver CSE training to all Lancashire maintained secondary 

school pupils and their families until August 2016  

 Development of bespoke Problem Profile for each Authority area. Work is underway to 

update the problem profile to ensure it is relevant for all areas. 

 Working with commissioners to ensure appropriate therapeutic services are available to 

Children and Young People in Lancashire 

 

Missing From Home (MFH)  

Strategic multi-agency group to ensure a coordinated multi agency response to MFH. 

 

Key Achievements for 2014/15 

 Completion of 6 month report by Children's Society of RHI’s (return home interviews) and 

continued provision of service commissioned. 183 were completed – 80% of those 

commissioned and a total of 179 were able to access further support as a result 

 Missing children conference to be arranged for early 2016. LSCB is arranging a multi-

agency conference aimed at young people and professionals to assist in recognising the 

stages of the journey and where and how to access support and policies to assist 

 Effective data provision of Missing episodes shared with Local Authority area. The sub 

group has a standing item to provide Community Safety Partnership information relation to 

those children and young people who go missing from home 

 

Priorities for 2015/16 

 Effective Return Home Interviews are providing relevant information and Intelligence to 

agencies and assisting in delivering a reduction in repeat episodes. A task and finish 

group has been set up to deliver this priority 

 Further resourcing for Missing Persons as it continues to be a priority area for all 

agencies. Demand in certain areas is particularly high and the vulnerabilities identified 

require further research and analysis in order to deliver preventative work; resource 

demand and deliver training where identified 

 Ensuring children with identifiable risks are categorised correctly within the Missing or 

absent definition to provide the most relevant response. Absent and Missing reports 

continue to be scrutinised by agencies and highlighted where concerns are made and 

reports delivered to evidence the response is appropriate 

 Continued relevant information sharing between partners to provide effective support for 

those children regularly missing 

 The link between missing and radicalisation to be highlighted via an awareness raising 

initiative on vulnerability and warning signs to consider. Prevent and Channel continue to 

deliver training and their work delivered to members of this group for awareness raising 

Page 55



 30 

 

 Pan-Lancashire Action plan for Missing Children to deliver priorities. Members of this 

group to deliver a plan that is evidence based and relevant to deliver their priorities 

 LSCB Conference on “Missing “ to be run in conjunction with Young People to deliver 

awareness of missing journey; risks associated and policies and procedures required  

 Problem Profile of Missing Persons to be undertaken. Analysis and mapping of the 

missing picture to be undertaken to inform agencies of the scale of the problem and 

identify where actions need to be taken 

 Continue to work closely with the CSE Strategic Group identifying links between missing 

from home and CSE 

 Link to REACh bid  

 

 

Children's Partnership Boards 

In 2014/15 as part of a wider review of partnerships across county, the LSCB agreed to work with 

the Children's Trust Partnership Board to rationalise the number of partnership groups in light of 

reduced resources and the need for efficiency savings in all partner agencies. To this end it was 

agreed, through a process of consultation and planning to merge the functions of the Local 

Safeguarding Groups (LSCGs) and the District Children's Trusts (DCTs). This resulted in the 12 

DCTs and 3 LSCGs combining into 5 Children's Partnership Boards covering the following 

districts: 

1. Burnley & Pendle 

2. Hyndburn, Rossendale and Ribble Valley 

3. Lancaster Fylde & Wyre 

4. Chorley, South Ribble and West Lancashire 

5. Preston 

During the latter part of 2014/15 the LSCB worked closely with the new groups to ensure 

safeguarding is effectively embedded in their priorities and group membership is representative 

of local safeguarding agency leads. The LSCB has also agreed to share a number of its reports 

such as this Annual Report, the Child Death Overview Panel Annual Report, Serious Case 

Review Learning and other reports as and when necessary to ensure the key messages are 

considered locally in the wider context of children's services. 

 

The LSCB has now established clear reporting arrangements and regular update reports are 

received from the CPBs which are considered by the LSCB. During 2015/16 the LSCB will look to 

further develop its relationship with the CPBs to ensure they are held to account effectively with 

regard to safeguarding within their plans and activities. A review of key discussions within the 

LSCB is reported on a bi-monthly basis to CPB's  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



 31 

 

 

9. LSCB Budget  

 

INCOME Annual Budget 

Contributions to Board   

    

North Lancashire CCG 18,917 

Fylde & Wyre CCG 18,918 

Greater Preston CCG 16,000 

West Lancashire CCG 8,535 

Chorley & South Ribble CCG 13,300 

East Lancashire CCG 37,835 

Police 43,938 

Probation Service 13,488 

Cafcass 550 

Lancashire County Council 112,000 

  267,100 

Child Death Overview Panel 
 

    

Lancashire County Council 73,500 

Blackpool 8,820 

Blackburn with Darwen 15,680 

  98,000 

TOTAL LSCB INCOME 14/15 381,481 

    

EXPENDITURE Annual Budget 

Central   

Staffing Costs 100,400 

Transport 1,700 

Printing and Stationery 1,000 

Telephones 600 

Staff Subsistence 1,000 

Panel/Professional Fees 20,000 

Venues (Meetings/Room Bookings & 
Hospitality) 

1,500 

Other Expenses 2,000 

  128,200 

Child Death Overview   

    

Staffing Costs 60,000 

Transport 1,000 

Printing and Stationery 500 

Telephones 100 

Staff Subsistence 200 

Venues (Meetings/Room Bookings & 
Hospitality) 

1,000 

Other Expenses 35,200 

  98,000 

    

Serious Case Review   

Page 57



 32 

 

Staffing Costs 24,400 

Professional Fees 45,000 

Venues (Meetings/Room Bookings & 
Hospitality) 

2,000 

Other Expenses 1,000 

  72,400 

    
Training   

Staffing Costs 74,700 

Transport 1,600 

Printing and Stationery 1,600 

Staff Subsistence 1,000 

Professional Fees 30,000 

Venues (Meetings/Room Bookings & 
Hospitality) 

15,000 

General/Other Expenses 15,000 

  138,900 

    

TOTAL LSCB EXPENDITURE 437,500 

    

Reserves £ 

Reserves as at 31/03/2014 -268,418 

Reserves to be used to balance 14/15 Budget 56,019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



 33 

 

10. Priorities for 2015/16 

 

Priorities identified in last year's annual report were as follows: 

1. The application and understanding of thresholds and the continuum of need  

2. Continued awareness raising and analysis of the risks presented through use of the 

internet and social media 

3. Embedding the use of the refreshed CAF process and ensuring timely and appropriate 

early support services 

4. The effectiveness of the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 

5. Domestic abuse data and evidence of the effectiveness of services on a countywide basis 

6. Awareness of Private Fostering requirements and monitoring of number of cases 

7. Engagement with private sector children's homes  

8. Accurate monitoring of single agency training (quality and quantity) 

9. The incidence of self-harm and causal factors 

10. Alcohol use by young people 

11. The higher than average incidence of smoking during pregnancy and infant mortality 

12. Ensuring assessments are multi-agency and holistic; especially regarding: voice of the 

child, the role of men/fathers, accurate and up to date information, professional challenge / 

scepticism, consideration of historical information 

13. Ensuring services target resources to areas of need effectively 

14. Accurate and regular performance data on a countywide basis from health agencies 

 

While good progress has been made with most of these priorities as evident from this annual 

report, it is clear that some of these issues will continue to remain a priority for the coming year 

and beyond (E.g. – self harm, alcohol use, accurate performance data). In addition to this the 

following challenges and achievements will also inform key priorities and business planning for 

the coming year (and in many cases beyond): 

 

1. Complexity and diversity of the administrative area especially in relation to deprivation 

rates 

2. Poor health outcomes, especially child obesity, tooth decay and hospital attendance 

3. Increasing self-harm 

4. Increasing numbers of CLA from other local authorities (approaching 1000) 

5. Significant reduction in CPP to below the national average 

6. Number of CLA above national average 

7. Increasing number of CSE referrals but no increase in recorded crime 

8. Ensure effective early intervention and preventative service responses continue to be 

developed  

9. High level of agency compliance with S11 standards 

10. Disproportionate levels of child deaths from Asian Pakistani heritage 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



 34 

 

 

 

11. Contact details 

 

@ Email:  lscb@cyp.lancscc.gov.uk 

 

 Address:  

Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board  

Room 503/504  

East Cliff County Offices  

East Cliff JDO  

PRESTON  

PR1 3EA  

 

 

 Phone: +44 (0)1772 530283  

         

 

Website: http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60

mailto:lscb@cyp.lancscc.gov.uk
http://www.lancashiresafeguarding.org.uk/


 35 

 

 

 

12. Appendices 
   

Appendix 1 

 

MASPI's 

Summary of Key Findings 

Early Help inspection: 

Strengths: 

 All actions from initial plan completed 

 Improved commissioning based on need and views of children and families 

 Significant investment in service development and workforce development 

 Holistic approach looking at whole family via Team Around the Family (TAF) 

 Engagement of VCFS 

 Improved understanding of what 'good' looks like 

 Good use of JSNA and consultation with C&YP 

 Improved outcomes for early years  

 

Weaknesses 

 Governance / reporting unclear 

 Improved understanding of what early help is across agencies 

 More clarity required about step up / down process 

 Lack of analytical capacity 

 Use of community assets could be better 

 Impact of Children's Centre Plus and YPS not well evidenced 

 SCR learning not fully embedded 

 Mixed understanding of Continuum of Need 

 Variable use of CAF 

 

The Burnley inspection: 

Strengths 

 Good practice and committed staff generally 

 Good evidence of voice of child 

 Improved involvement of health practitioners in safeguarding 

 Social work forum works well 

 Supervision & reflective practice well evidenced 

 Improved pathways re CAMHS 

 Young inspectors found YPs were generally positive about living in Burnley 

 

Weaknesses 

 CSC accommodation not good, scope for improved co-location 

 LCS and recording issues 

 Accessibility of CP medicals 

 CSC leadership / management unclear (at the time) 

 Social workers over burdened with admin 

Page 61



 36 

 

 Inconsistency / continuity of professionals at core groups 

 Multi-agency decision making at core groups 

 Impact of Police restructure in relation to CSE 

 

The findings from these inspections  were presented to the local Children's Partnership Boards 

who have  developed an action plan to address any areas for improvement and recognise and 

promote areas of achievement. These action plans are overseen by the LSCB QA/PM Sub-group 

until they are completed and signed off.  

 

Appendix 2 

 

LSCB Annual Reports - Summaries 

 

Local Authority Designated Officer for Allegations (LADO)  

Overall the LADO has seen an increase in activity and referrals, contacts have increased 

from1076 in 2014 to 1616 in 2015. This is likely attributable to more awareness raising and 

improved information sharing (possibly resulting from location to the MASH) and a widening of 

the definition of regulated activity in statutory guidance. Timeliness of initial response has 

improved, but there has been an apparent decline in performance with regard to time taken to 

resolve cases; this however represents a higher proportion of complex cases in the sample due 

to changes in how the cases are categorised. Provision of a LADO assistant has had a significant 

impact on resolving open cases. 

 

CAF / Early Help 

The total number of CAFs initiated during 2014/15 increased substantially from previous year 

(approximately 50% increase) and the vast majority of closed CAFs were due to needs being 

met. A quality assurance process is now in place and will enable better monitoring of quality and 

completeness of information in future. A total of 3,070 people completed the CAF eLearning 

module with 183 practitioners completing the CAF champion training. Early Help / CAF module 

on LCS needs progressing ASAP as database is very limited. 

 

Counter Terrorism  

The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 (CTSA 2015) was granted Royal Assent on 12th 

February 2015 and came into effect on 1st July 2015. It requires specified bodies to have due 

regard, in the exercise of their functions, to the need to prevent people from being drawn into 

terrorism. LSCBs need to be assured agencies have considered the guidance especially with 

regard to staff training. The Chanel Team continue to provide training to partner agencies.  

 

Domestic Abuse 

Lancashire Action against Domestic Abuse (LADA) is now the group with strategic and senior 

representation across all relevant statutory and 3rd sector agencies responsible for the delivery 

of front line services across the county. It governs the following which are its now sub-groups: 

• MARAC Steering group 

• HBV/FM/FGM Steering group 

• SDVC Steering group 

An outcome focussed strategy will be developed to ensure equitable services for victims and 

offenders across county. This will be ratified by the district Chief Executives Group. 

Page 62



 37 

 

 

IRO 

The IRO service is now fully staffed, however, IRO capacity remains a significant challenge and 

caseloads are consistently higher than that recommended in the IRO Handbook.  There has 

been an improvement in performance in relation to the proportion of reviews (CLA and CP) 

completed within the required timescale. Performance in relation to participation of children in 

their review has increased to 97.6% in 2014-15 from 95.2% in 2013-14. Attendance by key 

agencies and families at reviews is generally high. Transition to LCS continues to present 

challenges. A new locality management model will be introduced in 2015 to further improve 

efficiency of the service. 

 

MAPPA 

Lancashire MAPPA‘s performance continues to be strong although the lack of attendance by 

some Duty to Co-Operate agencies at Level 2 meetings can be concerning. The numbers of 

cases managed at MAPPA level 2 continues to fall across Lancashire and this is attributed to 

more robust screening process at the referral stage along with the 'Four Pillars' Risk 

Management approach. 

 

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 

The estimate for police referrals at the commencement of MASH (pan Lancashire) was 34000, 

clearly this had been drastically underestimated and the first year of MASH saw a total of almost 

50000 referrals and 47000 in year 2.  

Moving to phase 2 may lead to a doubling in referrals and plans need to be agreed as to how this 

volume can be managed / resourced. The multi-agency staff structure is working well to improve 

information sharing and appropriate escalation / step down, however, it is felt that Probation, 

IDVA and Mental Health professionals would further strengthen this. 

 

Secure Estate 

During April 2014 – March 2015, 34 young people were remanded to secure placements and 54 

young people were sentenced to custody. The majority of these were placed in YOIs and were 

nearly all male. 44% of sentenced young people were CLA. 100% of all ASSETs were completed 

for the period and there were 7 notifications of restraint. Access to accommodation and 

employment / training are the 2 biggest priorities for young people upon release. 

 

Private Fostering  

The Private Fostering Champions Group has continued to take the work forward by the 

development of plans. LCC have a budget for publicity information and publicity campaigns 

continue to be delivered to targeted groups as well as more generally. The website and pages 

have also been updated to ensure information is up to date.  

There were 47 notifications received during the year and compliance with processes and 

timescales is generally in line with last year's performance though there are some concerns 

about the accuracy of the data due to implementation of LCS. All cases have been audited by at 

least one children's social care manager so the LSCB can be reassured that no children were left 

at risk. There are still some challenges with the use of LSCs, timeliness of DBS checks and 

ensuring YPs are informed of advocacy services. 

 

Appendix 3 

Page 63



 38 

 

 

LSCB   Attendance 

Agency % Atn 

Children's Society 67 

LSAB 67 

Chair QA/PM 100 

EL CCG 100 

LCC (Lead Member) 67 

LCC (DCS) 83 

LTHT NHS 67 

Probation 100 

Police 67 

CCG - C&SR, WL and Preston 83 

District Councils 50 

LCC  83 

Indep Chair 100 

LCFT NHS 83 

CVS 50 

LCC SI&A 100 

Cafcass 83 

LTHT NHS 50 

Schools 33 

CDOP Chair 67 

L&F CCG 83 

Lay Member 33 

UHMB 67 

ELHT 83 

NHS England 67 

BTHT 133 

S&OHT 0 

Governing Bodies 100 

OVERALL % 69 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



 39 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This report has been prepared by Jane Booth, Independent Chair of the Board with 

support from Paul Hegarty and Richard Matthews 

 

Approved by LSCB on: 11th September 2015 

 

Date of Publication: 15th September 2015 

 

Page 65



Page 66



Scrutiny Committee

Meeting to be held on Friday 13 November 2015

Electoral Division affected:
None

Transforming Care and Calderstones NHS Trust - Notice of Motion 
(Appendix 'A' refer)

Contact for further information:
Habib Patel, (01772) 536099 
Habib.patel@lancashire.gov.uk 

Executive Summary

At the meeting Full Council, 22 October, 2015, a Motion was carried regarding 
Transforming Care and Calderstones which had been proposed at the Scrutiny 
Committee on 18 September 2015. The resultant letters from the Chief Executive to 
the CEO of NHS England and the Secretary of State for Health are attached at 
Appendix 'A'. 

Recommendation

That the Committee note the letters at Appendix 'A', and comment as appropriate.  

Background and Advice 

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

There are no significant risk management implications.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Page 67

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Habib.patel@lancashire.gov.uk


Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel

N/A

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Scrutiny Committee

Meeting to be held on 13 November 2015 

Electoral Division affected:
None

Work Plan and Task Group Update
(Appendix 'A' & 'B' refers)

Contact for further information:
Habib Patel, (01772) 536099, habib.patel@lancashire.gov.uk 

Executive Summary

The plan set out at Appendix 'A' summarises the work to be undertaken by the 
Committee in the coming months, including an update on Task Group work. The 
information will be updated and presented to each meeting of the Committee for 
information.

Recommendation

i. The Committee is asked to note the report.
ii. Consider the proposal for a new Task Group from the Health Scrutiny 

Committee as set out at Appendix 'B'. 

Background and Advice 

Information on the current status of work being undertaken by the Committee and Task 
Groups is presented to each meeting for information.

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

There are no significant risk management implications.

Page 73

Agenda Item 7

mailto:habib.patel@lancashire.gov.uk


List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel

N/A

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 74



Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2014/15

13 
November 
2015

Lancashire 
Safeguarding 
Children Board 
Update

Jane Booth

Report of the 
Fire Prevention 
Measures Task 
Group

Jason Homan

11 
December 
2015

Regulation of 
Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 
Update

Amanda 
Maxim/Ian 
Young/Laura 
Sales

Annual update 

Superfast 
Broadband Roll 
Out

Sean 
McGrath

Full update on progress as agreed as requested by Executive Scrutiny 
Committee on 31 March 2015

Report of the 
Planning 
Matters Task 
Group

Andrew 
Mullaney

Future Topics: not yet scheduled
 Bus Services and Subsidies - to consider outcomes of discussions with districts and next steps
 Transforming Social Care - to consider the work undertaken by independent consultants

Appendix 'A'

P
age 75



 Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Update
 United Utilities 
 Libraries and Cultural Services 
 Rail Travel – Update on developments since task group 
 Supporting Young People 

Task Groups
The following task and finish groups are ongoing or have recently been established:

 Planning Matters: Interface between upper and lower tiers authorities in making the right decisions on planning applications 
(especially flood management and educational provision)  

 Fire Prevention Measures in Schools
 Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP)

P
age 76



Appendix 'B'

Request for new task group

Date 13.11.15 Suggested by CC Steve Holgate

Title Understanding the shortage of nurses

Explain briefly 
what this task 
group is about

At the HSC on 13 October the Committee discussed the 
fact that the hospital trusts within Lancashire struggled 
to recruit adequate numbers of nurses. It was 
acknowledged that this was a national picture but 
members indicated that they did not fully understand all 
the reasons behind the situation. It was agreed that it 
would be beneficial if members knew the underlying 
reasons for the staffing shortage so they could consider 
how they might be able to influence policy makers in the 
future.

Has anyone else 
done any work on 
this topic recently?

There are examples of independent research looking 
into the issue by various organisations nationally but not 
aware of any work done specifically in Lancashire.

Why does there 
need to be a task 
group review of 
this?

To obtain a better understand of which policies and 
other factors affect the number of available nurses within 
the market

What are the key 
objectives of this 
task group?

To understand and learn from that knowledge
To consider how to influence policy makers

If the task group is 
successful, what 
difference will 
scrutiny have 
made?

Clarified the national and local situation
Be in a position to influence

Page 77



Appendix 'B'

What will be the 
measure of 
success?

Members being better informed which will improve their 
ability to effectively challenge future decisions of local 
NHS organisations

Page 78



Appendix 'B'

How will this 
contribute to 
corporate 
priorities?

Taken from new draft corporate strategy:
 To live a healthy live
 To have employment that provides an income 

that allows full participation in society.

Who will the task 
group need to get 
evidence from?

 Royal College of Nursing
 Universities
 Department of Health
 Kings Fund
 Local Trusts
 Trade Unions
 Clinical Commissioning Groups
 NHS England
 Healthwatch

What are the main 
issues that need to 
be covered?

 Statistical information on past and present 
number of nurses

 Pay structures
 Barriers to training
 Government policies

Does this task 
group need to be 
done by a certain 
time? Please 
explain why

No

Committee
Health Scrutiny Committee

Page 79



Page 80


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 October 2015
	4 Report of the Fire Suppression Measures Task Group
	Appendix 'A' - Report of the Fire Suppression Measures Task Group
	Appendix 'B' - The Financial Constraints of Implementing Fire Safety Requirements into New Build Schools

	5 Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board Update
	Appendix 'A' - Summary of Learning from 2015/16 Serious Case Review
	Appendix 'B' - Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board - Annual Report 2014/15

	6 Transforming Care and Calderstones NHS Foundation Trust - Notice of Motion
	Letter to Jeremy Hunt MP
	Letter to S Stevens

	7 Workplan and Task Group Update
	Work Plan and Task Group Update Appendix 'A'
	Task Group Request - Appendix 'B'


